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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

REGISTERED OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

25th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement 19 March 2019

Final Dividend

— Last time to lodge transfers 29 May 2019
(before 4:30 p.m.)

— Book Close Dates 30 and 31 May 2019
— Record Date 31 May 2019
— Payment Date 21 June 2019
(HKO0.55 cent per share)
Annual General Meeting 23 May 2019

— Last time to lodge transfers 17 May 2019
(before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed form
and on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to protect the
environment, the Company highly recommends the shareholders
to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report. Shareholders
may have the right to change their choice of receipt of our future
Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable notice in
writing to the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited,
by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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e RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
' EBSEE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

HK$ Million 2017 2018 Changes

E&ET 25

Revenue 4,075 4,722 +15.9%

WA

Gross profit 1,089 1,305 +19.8%

EH

Gross profit margin 26.7% 27.6% +0.9 pp

EFFE B8

Net profit

AL

— Per Reported &R & 160 264 +65.0%

— Adjusted # 3 #* 160 269 + 68.1%

Net profit margin

— Per Reported & # % 3.9% 5.6% + 1.7 pp
B

— Adjusted #¥ 55 Z* 3.9% 5.7% + 1.8 pp
=5t

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 2.32 3.87 +66.8%

BREREZFN GEI)

Total dividends per share (HK cents) 0.75 1.25 +66.7%

R B AR GBIl

* Excluding a depreciation charge of HK$4.8 million (2017: Nil) on a self-owned store at Nos. 4-8 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, one of the Group’s flagship stores in Hong Kong.

WRAREENEB 2 EP —KERE—NERYDEERBEL-85 2 A B /5 # < 7 & F 24,800,000/ 7T (20174 : &) °




10 Years+ Caring Company
10 Years+ 2B

/ ETELTEe.
caringcompany

Mission
To build @ cohesive society by promoting strategic partnerships among business
and social service partners, and inspiring corporate social responsibility through

caring for the community, employees and the environment.
RE
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FIERLEY - ORI R2WHE  MFRBAMTE -

>

G A

HKIRA 4th Investor Relations
Awards 2018
2018445 4 Jm $ & 5 B 1R K 3¢

* 3 Years IR Awards Winning Company
SR H R BRIEAT

® Best IR Company
BAEREEBRRAT

e Best Investor Presentation Material
AR H M R

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

(May 2018)

B WG A WA W& (20184851

ACHIEVEMENTS
ik 0

Hong Kong Service Awards 2018 —
Luxury Watch Retailer

20184F- 75 s Ik 15 K48 — 44 5 S 8k AT

East Week (Mar 2018)

KT (20184E3H)

The Outstanding Brand Awards
2018 — Luxury Watch Retailer
20184F 11 ) i R 38 — 44 H S SR AT
Economic Digest (Jul 2018)
AL — (20184E71)
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A Lo

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is a leading retailer of European-made internationally renowned watches, together with
self-designed fine jewellery products under its own brand, "Emperor Jewellery”. The Company has
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since July 2008.

The Group has established a retail network of over 90 stores across Hong Kong, Macau, mainland
China, Singapore and Malaysia, as well as an online shopping platform, and now has over 1,100 staff.
With a history of over 75 years, the Company carries a balanced and comprehensive watch dealership
list. The target customers range from middle to high income groups worldwide. The Group’s core
strategy focuses on maintaining its position as the leading watch and jewellery retailing group in Greater
China, coupled with an eye on expansion beyond the region.

HEFEZRREBFRAA ([KXLF]])ZFENE R ﬂ(?ﬁﬁ/—I%']}szﬁ Z BB BN R 5 R IR
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LEBYFE HETAHEBE100A - KAGIHFE76EZFESL  LELGE T2 EHZEZmBIE > BIFEE
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MARKET REVIEW i % 5] g

2018 was a year of contrasts. The first half of the year was 2018@%%7 mERR e E¥FERER
marked by encouraging growth for the luxury consumption REHEMIBEESATREZIZE - K @ itk
market in general. However, this growth was not sustained R EXRERFE EPEZFUNRBE LR
and the second half was punctuated by a fall-off in market | - Tﬁéiz MR RS TH o

sentiment in the shadow of a prolonged Sino-US trade

dispute.

In Hong Kong, retail sales growth has moderated R&EE TEHERL K H2018FIA UREK

since September 2018, particularly in the jewellery and IEH#E LHERKRERESERY - BE BT
watch sector. Statistics from The Census and Statistics yourFEZ%W%‘?%E/T\ Z‘T‘L%@ﬁ 18 Bz &6 &

Department revealed that September retail sales in i 5 %ﬁfﬁ&f‘ﬁ%?}iﬁﬁﬂ
the jewellery, watches and clocks category increased ’%\' - A
year-on-year by a slight 1.9% only after eight straight F£3=E % T

months of double-digit growth, and the trend has VtﬂﬁﬂﬂAEﬁ%ﬁ%@#r
become even weaker after the third quarter of 2018. T 78 J1 B 4 B BA A =%
The moderation in retails sales was due partly to softer % = (@ B ERSEEEEE -
Chinese tourist spending because of a weaker yuan; and . ' R

partly to the more cautious local consumptio im
amid various external uncertainties and we
prices.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERALL REVIEW

Despite a slowdown in the second half, the Group’s
overall results during the year ended 31 December 2018
(the “Year”) remained satisfactory. During the Year, the
Group’s total revenue increased by 15.9% to HK$4,722.2
million (2017: HK$4,075.1 million). Gross profit grew by
19.8% to HK$1,304.5 million (2017: HK$1,089.2 million).
The gross profit margin was lifted by 0.9 percentage point
to 27.6% (2017: 26.7%), which was mainly attributable to
stronger market demand for luxury watches.

The Group’s net profit recorded a growth of 65.5% to
HK$264.3 million (2017: HK$159.7 million). Subsequent
to the completion of the acquisition of a retail space at
Nos. 4-8 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong - as a self-owned store (the “Self-owned Store”)
— on 12 December 2018, a depreciation charge of
HK$4.8 million (2017: Nil) was incurred. Excluding such
depreciation charge, the adjusted net profit grew by
68.5% to HK$269.1 million (2017: HK$159.7 million). The
increase in profit was due to an improved gross profit and
disciplined control over the operating and administrative
expenses. Basic earnings per share increased to HK3.87
cents (2017: HK2.32 cents). The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board” or the “Directors”) recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK0.55 cent (2017:
HKO0.58 cent) per share. Together with the interim dividend
of HKO0.70 cent (2017: HKO0.17 cent) per share, the total
dividends for the Year are HK1.25 cents (2017: HKO.75
cent) per s are.
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT

Hong Kong remained the core market for the Group, with
revenue delivering a solid growth of 19.6% to HK$3,642.9
million (2017: HK$3,046.7 million), which accounted
for 77.1% (2017: 74.8%) of the total revenue. Revenue
from Macau grew by 22.4% to HK$286.6 million (2017:
HK$234.3 million), while sales from Southeast Asia and
mainland China were broadly stable year-on-year.

Considering the breakdown by product, watch segment
revenue rose 13.1% to HK$3,664.0 million (2017:
HK$3,238.6 million) and accounted for 77.6% (2017:
79.5%) of the total revenue. Revenue from the jewellery
segment recorded impressive growth of 26.5% to
HK$1,058.2 million (2017: HK$836.5 million), as a result of
an expanded “Emperor Jewellery” store network, coupled
with successful marketing strategies.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

In December 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the Self-owned Store at a total consideration of
HK$1,800 million. Approximately HK$1,200 million cash
was deployed, equivalent to the total consideration net of
the outstanding amounts payable under the mortgages
of approximately HK$600 million. The acquisition has
resulted in changes in the Group’s financial position.

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$627.3 million
(31 December 2017: HK$1,613.1 million), which were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
(“RMB”). As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,156.5 million
(31 December 2017: Nil), resulting a net gearing ratio
(calculated on the basis of net debts over net asset value)
of 11.9% (31 December 2017: Nil). The Group also had
available un-utilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$526.6 million.

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of
102,990,000 of its own shares from the market by using
internal resources at an aggregate consideration of
HK$51.2 million, with an average price of HK$0.50 per
share. These repurchased shares were cancelled during
the Year. Having considered the Group’s cash reserves,
the Directors believe the share repurchases would
recognise value to the Company’s shareholders and
benefit the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

PEBBEEESAEB 2R LTS - WAR
fiZ # £19.6% £ 3,642,900,000/% 7t (2017
% : 3,046,700,0008 ) * thRWA77.1%
(20174 : 74.8%) - KA BRI 2 WA
+FFH22.4% % 286,600,000 jT (20174 :
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHER RN

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current assets
and current liabilities were approximately HK$3,896.8
million (31 December 2017: HK$4,450.3 million) and
HK$908.7 million (31 December 2017: HK$305.7
million), respectively. Current ratio and quick ratio of the
Group were 4.3 (31 December 2017: 14.6) and 0.9 (31
December 2017: 5.9), respectively.

In view of the Group’s financial position as at 31
December 2018, the Directors considered that the Group
had sufficient working capital for its operations and future
development plans.

BUSINESS REVIEW

PRESENCE IN PRIME RETAIL LOCATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was operating 95
stores (831 December 2017: 80) in Hong Kong, Macau,
mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia. The distribution
was as follows:

2018F12A31H " AEBRHEE K
BaEs R4 5E3,896,800,000/8 T
(2017%12)%31 H : 4,450,300,000% 7T )
5 908,700,000 jt (2017 12A318 :
305,700,000 70) - AEE 2 R8I K K&
R R A4.3(2017F12A318 : 14.6)
%0.9(20175%12A31H : 5.9)
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HmamT

Number of stores

JESHEE
Hong Kong R EI & 29
Macau  EIJ®FT 5
Mainland China # B A 53
Singapore #1013 7
Malaysia F5 2RIz 1
Total A% 95

These stores include self-branded “"Emperor Jewellery”
stores, dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch
stores (with or without jewellery counters).

In Hong Kong, the Group has established a strong
presence in prime shopping areas, on Russell Street
in Causeway Bay, Canton Road in Tsim Sha Tsui, and
Queen’s Road Central in Central. Surrounded by the
world’s leading brands, the stores located in these areas
continue to benefit from massive tourist exposure and high
foot traffic. In addition, the solid foothold in prime areas
enables the Group to ensure its market position as one of
Hong Kong’s leading watch retailers.

EMPEROR WATCH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
o T vk i % 4 A
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In December 2018, the Group secured its significant
foothold on the core part of Canton Road through the
acquisition of the Self-owned Store, which it has operated
as a flagship store for over the past decade. Being one
of the busiest shopping streets in Hong Kong, Canton
Road receives massive tourist traffic as it is within a
comprehensive public transportation network comprising
mass transit railways, buses and ferries. Acquiring the
Self-owned Store has enabled the Group to sustain a
strategic sales network on Canton Road, which abounds
with the world’s premier brands. Given its proven sales
performance, the continuity of a major financial contributor
has also been guaranteed.
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way. During the Year, one multi-watch store and three 1% &R
dedicated watch boutiques were launched in Beijing ZEEAR&E
and Chongqging, further reinforcing the Group’s market
penetration in mainland China.

SOLIDIFYING LEADING POSITION EEEEMN
In the watch sector, it is imperative to maintain a H#&KT% #ERBETEF I HNEE
collaborative brand-retailer relationship. The Group has Eﬁ%@(%ﬁi%ﬁ cAEMBEET BT EE
continued to enjoy solid long-term relationships with major @REHEFEEZSELRREEBEE TR
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watch dealerships in Greater China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENHANCING THE JEWELLERY BUSINESS

The Group offers premium quality “Emperor Jewellery”
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship. The spectacular “Emperor Jewellery”
range features a variety of precious gem stones with a
key focus on diamonds and jadeites. “Emperor Jewellery”
unveils unique collections of exquisite designs that
embrace and nurture different clusters of customers.

During the Year, the Group strived to enrich its product
offerings in an effort to penetrate the affordable luxury
jewellery segment. The signature collections launched
during the Year included new “Yo Yo” Collection featuring
unisex designs, “Mini Me” mother-and-baby pendant
sets, “One Vow, Two Love” Bridal Collection, “Emperor
Jewellery X Joey Yung Heartbeat” Collection and
Chinese Wedding Fine Gold Collection. To engage with
the evolving preferences of fashion-savvy customers, the
Group has been revamping the images of some “Emperor
Jewellery” stores, to refresh them with new store layouts.
Meanwhile, the Group also seeks to broaden customer
portfolio through expanding its presence in local shopping
areas, enhancing product displays, and implementing a
series of social media campaigns.

In Hong Kong, six “Emperor Jewellery’ stores were
added during the Year. These are all in shopping malls
with heavy foot traffic, such as Telford Plaza | in Kowloon
Bay, APM in Kwun Tong and MOSTown in Ma On Shan.
The stores are decorated with warm colour combinations,
creating a harmonious and relaxing atmosphere, and are
perfect settings for presenting exquisite jewellery pieces.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

O B i B ST

Going beyond borders, “Emperor Jewellery”’ has
expanded its footprint to include Malaysia. The new store
was opened in November 2018, spans 2,000 square
feet and is strategically located in the iconic premium
shopping mall Pavilion Kuala Lumpur. The grand launch
was graced by special guests including Dr. Albert Yeung,
Chairman of Emperor Group; multi-hyphenate Hong Kong
pop star Ms. Joey Yung; as well as Malaysia prominent
celebrity couple Mr. Awal Ashaari and Ms. Scha Alyahya,
who were joined by Ms. Cindy Yeung, Chairperson and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, to officiate the
opening ceremony and celebrate this important milestone.

The Group has organised various marketing events to
showcase and reveal the design essence of “Emperor
Jewellery’. In November 2018, the Group was proud to
present “Nud by Cindy Yeung’, the new high jewellery
brand led by Ms. Yeung, in its prestigious annual
jewellery exhibition. “Nué” is a brand of high jewellery
that embodies perfect artwork imbued with boundless
creativity and passion, delivering an extraordinary
experience. Meaning “promise”, the word “Nud” is
taken from the Putonghua pronunciation of a Chinese
character in the names of Ms. Yeung and her daughter.
The collection symbolises a distinctive family lineage that
continues through generations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LEVERAGING GROUP SYNERGIES

The Group enjoys unigue advantages by leveraging
synergies with other companies within Emperor Group.
For example, Emperor International Holdings Limited —
another listed company under Emperor Group — owns
many premium retail properties in renowned shopping
areas. By leasing retail stores at prime locations from it on
an arm’s length basis, the Group can enjoy guaranteed
foot traffic. Another synergy arises through Emperor
Entertainment Group and Emperor Motion Pictures, two
private arms under Emperor Group. The Group invited VIP
guests to its movie premieres and sponsored jewellery
for the artistes. Such exposure opportunities, with pop
artistes, movie stars and high-profile celebrities, serve
as an important tool for enhancing the reputation of
the “Emperor” brand, particularly in Chinese-speaking
communities.

Ms. Gillian Chung featuring
Chinese Wedding Fine Gold Collection
EREXLTFRIAT LEGKE R

During the Year, the Group continued collaborating
with pop stars of Emperor Entertainment Group and
Emperor Motion Pictures, to tie-in with the launch of its
new initiatives. For instance, pop star Ms. Gillian Chung,
who got married last year, was invited to showcase the
Chinese Wedding Fine Gold Collection and to share her
joy, creating a vibrant touch for the wedding jewellery.
To spotlight the new “Yo Yo” collection, renowned artist
Mr. Nicholas Tse carried the jewellery pieces that are
imbued with an urban sense of style. In October 2018,
famous actress Ms. Niki Chow was appointed as the
endorser for “One Vow Two Love” Bridal Collection, which
featured a romantic story as its design motif.

Ms. Joey Yung featuring
Heartbeat Collection
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Ms. Niki Chow featuring
One Vow Two Love Bridal Collection
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PROSPECTS

The macro-economic headwinds such as the Sino-US
trade dispute, cooling economy in China and swings in
currencies all present formidable business challenges
in the near-term. Over the past decades, the Group
has witnessed many ups and downs, and has emerged
stronger after each cycle. As such, the Group will continue
to execute responsive and flexible strategies while
fine-tuning its priorities to stay competitive. The Group will
also strive to optimise its cost structures across each level
of business and remain vigilant regarding uncertainties on
the horizon.

China remains an important engine of the world’s growth.
Despite recent uncertainties, the expansion of the luxury
market is apparent across China, fuelled by rising
income levels, shifting demographics and improving
quality of life. With convenient access supported by
better infrastructure, comprehensive assortment of luxury
products and competitive pricing, Hong Kong remains a
top shopping destination for mainland Chinese. All these
factors result in favourable market fundamentals and
propel the Group’s long-term growth prospects.

With rising female empowerment, along with women’s
increasing spending, the jewellery sector is well placed to
benefit from the expanding roles of modern women in the
society. The Group is committed to reinforcing the brand
identity of “Emperor Jewellery” in Chinese-speaking
communities. In the coming years, the Group will focus
on boosting marketing efforts, strengthening its presence
in strategic locations and delivering a more favourable
product mix to evolve the right path for sustainable growth
in the affordable luxury jewellery segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS g,
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Geographically, the Group is adopting a two-pronged
strategy, comprising further penetration in Greater China
while expanding its presence into new cities in other
regions. The Group’s recent initiative in Malaysia has
demonstrated its dedication to strengthening its footprint
in Southeast Asia. In view of ample opportunities arising
from outbound travel by mainland Chinese, the Group
will continue to further explore scope for geographical
expansion.

Looking beyond the near-term uncertainties, the Group
is confident that its acknowledged position as a leading
retailer shall enable it to effectively capitalise on its core
competencies. The Group remains committed to seeking
and seizing new opportunities, and is well-prepared to
excel in changing times.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has 875
salespersons (2017: 752) and 251 office staff (2017: 216).
Total staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) were
HK$291.7 million (2017: HK$256.5 million) for the Year.
Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’s responsibility, competence & skills,
experience and performance as well as market pay
level. Staff benefits include medical and life insurance,
provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CINDY YEUNG, aged 54, the Chairperson and Managing
Director of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, as well as the Chairperson of the Executive
Committee of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She joined the Group in
September 1990 and became a director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an operating
arm of the retail outlets of the Group in Hong Kong,
in April 1999. The Group has been under her steering
since then. Ms. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development
and overseeing different operations within the Group. She
is the Director of Examination (Supervisory Committees)
of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd.
She is also the ambassador of “Because | am a Girl”
organized by a charity body, PLAN International Hong
Kong. Ms. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in
watch and jewellery industry. Prior to joining the Group,
she joined the sales department of Anju Jewelry Ltd., a US
based company engaging in trading of jewellery products.
She has obtained the qualification of the Graduate
Gemologist of Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and
subsequently graduated from University of San Francisco
with a Bachelor’'s Degree of Science in Business
Administration majoring in Management, with emphasis on
International Business.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHI FAI, aged 63, an Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Wong has been involved in the
management of the Group since November 1998.
He is a member of the Executive Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company as well as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Wong is currently a director of four listed companies
in Hong Kong, namely Emperor International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor International”),
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296)
(“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts
International Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”), all
being associated corporations of the Company. Having
over 30 years of finance and management experience,
Mr. Wong has diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from retailing of watch and
jewellery, manufacturing to wholesaling and retailing
of furniture, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services,
cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management as
well as media and publication. He is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA aged 56, an Executive
Director of the Company. Ms. Fan has been involved
in the management of the Group since November
1998. She is also the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Executive
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Fan is currently a director of
four listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Emperor
International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Culture and
Ulferts. Having over 30 years of corporate management
experience, Ms. Fan possesses diversified experience
in different businesses ranging from retailing of watch
and jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture,
property investment and development, hotel and
hospitality, financial and securities services, cinema
development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, artiste management as well as media
and publication. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong
Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 56, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in May 2016. She is also the Chairperson of the
Nomination Committee as well as a member of the
Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is a retired
solicitor with over 20 years’ of experience as
independent non-executive director of listed
companies. She is currently also an independent non-
executive director of two Hong Kong listed companies,
Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997) and Emperor Culture. Ms. Chan graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with Bachelor’'s Degree in
Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 55, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in May 2017. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of another Hong Kong listed
company, SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock Code:
2000). Mr. Liu holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

CHAN WILING, YVONNE, aged 54, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2017. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Ms. Chan previously worked in two international
accounting firms, Touche Ross & Co. and Ernst &
Young and engaged in accounting, auditing and
information security fields for 20 years. She graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University majoring
in accountancy and obtained a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration from Heriot-Watt University
in Scotland. Ms. Chan is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 64.

An interim dividend of HKO.7 cent per share for the Year
(2017: HKO0.17 cent per share) amounting to approximately
HK$47.5 million (2017: HK$11.7 million) was paid to the
Shareholders during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK0.55 cent per share (2017: HK0.58 cent per
share) for the Year, amounting to approximately HK$37.3
million (2017: HK$39.9 million) to those Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 31 May 2019, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 23 May 2019 (Thursday) (“2019 AGM”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 6 to 15. Description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 51 to 53 and note
27B to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Company that
had occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of
this report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with
key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policy and
performance as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the
Company are set out in the 2018 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 66.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2018, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$856,999,000 (2017: HK$802,153,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
144 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’ S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of
102,990,000 shares of the Company (“Shares”) at an
aggregate consideration of HK$51,193,950 (before
expenses) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

Particulars of the Share repurchase during the Year are as
follows :
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consideration

Date of Number of Highest Lowest paid (before

Months of share Cancellation shares price paid price paid expenses)

repurchase T A repurchased per Share per Share EfEKE

[ B8 iR 17 2 A 4 (DD/MM/YY) =] 3% A% 12 ENER 2SR (HRR

(2018) B/ A/ % Z#H BEE RIEE B < Al)

HK$ HK$ HK$
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April 4 A 15/05/2018 4,010,000 0.495 0.480 1,970,150

May 5 H 15/05/2018 22,790,000 0.520 0.485 11,394,100

June 6 H 29/06/2018 53,690,000 0.530 0.510 27,965,700

July 7H 31/07/2018 22,500,000 0.480 0.410 9,864,000
Total

Ast 102,990,000 51,193,950
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES (Continued)

The repurchases were made with a view to enhancing the
net asset value and/or earnings per Share.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

As at 31 December 2018, there was a total of
6,779,458,129 Shares in issue (2017: 6,882,448,129
Shares).

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)

Mr. Chan Hung Ming (resigned on 1 March 2018)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of
this report are set out from pages 16 to 18. Details
of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 80(1) and (3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Mr. Liu Hing
Hung shall retire by rotation at the 2019 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the 2019 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the Year or
during the period from 1 January 2018 up to the date of
this report are set out below and those marked with an
asterisk* are also Directors of the Company as at the date
of this report:

*Ms. Cindy Yeung
*Mr. Wong Chi Fai
*Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Mr. Chan Hung Ming
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
Ms. Koo Betty Po Har Yeung
Mr. Au Yit Hoo, Abel
Ms. Chui Man Yee
Mr. Luk Pak Chiu, David
Ms. Rafiati Binti Safiie
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s business were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Articles of
Association and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“EWJ
Securities Code”) were as follows:

(A) LONG POSITION INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY
Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”)

BHAH

RAEERN - BEEE O BET T orr
BEREBRGEEALEEMEHREAMERX
BHZEBZEL -

HE ot Y B SRAE R S
RAFEREZEAREABURERERA
S EE S5 B E G ROK R M E SN
EEERER  AAABERERY %S
ESCIG R AR D B 2 AT R AR B R R 4R
BrESRERERABEERN -

g%&%ﬁﬁﬁkﬁiﬁ#%ﬁ&%

R2018F12HA31H  EFENARF 2 E
ﬂﬁAEW$&T&EW%%E(E%%%
HREEKRD ([EHEREBEEN]) EXVEL)
ZBRMD HEHEROREEFREEARQF
BIBEESMBEGMEIKBETFERFZE
uEHﬁﬁﬁuEﬁZ*&E&7&%\ ’ EJUFET%$’D\ET
%%2%%@?%%*%2%%?%”%
EERHKEESFTA]) BESITHEARRA
LBz EREABWT

(A) REDFRER2HR
ERAGzEEBR (RG]

Number of % of issued
Name of Director Capacity/ Nature of interests issued Shares Shares
EEpns B REME ERTROE EERITRMD%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Beneficiary of the AY Trust 4,033,480,000 59.50%
% o BT AY TrustZ &z A
Note: Wit

These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”).
AY Holdings was held by STC International Limited (“STC
International”) in trust for The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY
Trust”), a discretionary trust under which Ms. Cindy Yeung is one of
the eligible beneficiaries.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

(B) LONG POSITION INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS OF THE COMPANY

DIRECTORS’ REPORT _g&
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(B) RAERQBEE EZEERZ 2T R

Ordinary Shares ZE R
Number of shares
Name of Director Name of associated corporation  Capacity/Nature of interests interested % of issued shares
BEspg HEEEER B/ REEME ERERZROHE EERTRE%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor International Holdings Beneficiary of the AY Trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%
BEELL Limited (‘Emperor International’)  AY Trust? & A (Note)
AERE (AR ERAF (i)
(EEL )
Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor Entertainment Hotel Beneficiary of the AY Trust 851,352,845 66.45%
G BT Limited (“Emperor E Hotel”) AY Trustz £ A (Note)
REREEERRAT (i)
(EeRLER)
Ms. Cindy Yeung Ulferts International Limited Beneficiary of the AY Trust 600,000,000 75.00%
PRy (“Ulferts”) AY TrustZ & A (Note)
B{CERERAA ([B1C]) (Hit)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Emperor International Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%
SRt HEER EnEAA
Note: oz
Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel and Ulferts are companies HOEEEE WO E M B AR B T

with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These respective
shares were ultimately owned by the AY Trust. Ms. Cindy Yeung, by
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust, had

deemed interests in the same shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none Pk
of the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

the SFO).
SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted by the Company in
June 2008 had expired automatically in June 2018. To
continue to provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the
Company had adopted a new share option scheme in May
2018. Particulars of the said share option schemes are
summarized and set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. No option was granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the said share option

LEWZRR] Xﬁﬁ%ﬂxfﬁ?] HAY Trust& 2% A o
ERBHEB L L RAY TustE BERERAZ— &
BWRBRN Lt h R s

N FXIREEIN - R2018F12A31H -
MEEESAQAAETEITHRAERNAK
NEHETRMEBEIE (EERLEHFK
BEKH EXVE) 2FmMKH - BE
B REEEFPEEEMERIAE °
el 5t

RATAR2008F6 A EFRM 2 BIREFTEERN
2018F6 HEEAM - BTHERNE TRt
HREN K EIHR - AR FER2018F5 AH K —
HFBERESTS - ZBEBRETE ZFS
ERAWEH RS T EHRERMEI0 B K
MEBZERERETEIEEE2018F 124

schemes since its adoption and up to 31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes as disclosed in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the

318 » NABMBEFE UL T H - 176 8
{E o] 8 A 4

% 5% 45 51 ok v
Bﬁﬁéﬁ?éﬁﬁ&#&ﬁﬁﬁuﬁoﬁﬁgﬂ’]ﬁ%l&ﬁ%ﬁ
o WEEMREBBHHHRAQAR

ZIKEE*%TIEJZEQZIKEFEXTA

Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the

Year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and
at no time during the Year was the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates was interested in any
business which was considered to compete or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

OTHER PERSONS’" INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following
persons or corporations (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken
to have interests and short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
("Dl Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES

i B ey AR R R 2 PR
Br £ X At %%'F$¢TX&$¢TW

J'L/\

Eﬂﬁﬁsﬁ ARA] -~ EAfEA P 28
NETEACES PN Tﬁ%ﬁlﬁlﬂiﬂzﬂ#
éﬁlﬁE%ﬁﬂiﬁﬁigﬁﬁ/\?@Z?&%Eﬂ
ﬁ%imﬁu"l’%ﬁ—f%;,ﬁ%)\zﬁﬂETEJZETEJ
H A A A B8 2 B i S B HE 78 M EER Al ot ©

R YIS TRTE 3/ A ¥

MR2018F 128318 - BERIE MR AAE
TREEETIAHRSEISZEZCETHEALR
WEET%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%&
BRI EMNERPERELZ

FL At N 7% 8 2 e R Bl My 2 2 J%
WA

MEMEEFRARRAETBETHRABRM
R2018F12HA31H  BRESFHARAEE
ITEABI U TALTSEER AR AR
MEEBERDTEEXIERAEKEEIESE
AR IR IR %&%fh%%%m,%%
ﬁTZA£ﬁU@ ﬁ@ﬁ@%DWiA
BITHEARRB 2 ERRABWT -

RBROz2HFR

Number of Shares % of
Capacity/Nature of interests interested issued Shares
2% £33 BERZ2ROEE HERITRMB%
Emperor W&J Holdings Beneficial owner 4,033,480,000 59.50%
REEERKRBEZER E=mEAA
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled Corporation 4,033,480,000 59.50%
15 X PR B 1T IR MR HEE 2 #Em
STC International Trustee of the AY Trust 4,0383,480,000 59.50%
AY TrustZ 5 A
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of the AY Trust 4,0383,480,000 59.50%
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”) AY TrustZ 837 A
BEKET((HBELT]
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 4,033,480,000 59.50%
B+ A (8 #E 2
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OTHER PERSONS’” INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES (Continued)

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Cindy Yeung

had deemed interest by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust as set out under Section (A) of
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” above.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31 December 2018, no short positions were recorded in
the DI Register of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Directors were not aware of any person or corporation
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have,
any interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the DI Register of the Company or
as otherwise notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company:

(1) CONNECTED TRANSACTION — ACQUISITION OF
ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN PERFECT RAISE
HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 27 August 2018, Emperor Watch & Jewellery
(HK & Macau) Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, had
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SP
Agreement”) with Emperor Property Investment
Limited (“Vendor”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International), as vendor, for the acquisition
of (a) the entire equity interest (1 ordinary share) of
Perfect Raise Holdings Limited (“Target Company”);
and (b) all loans due and payable by the Target
Company to the Vendor as at completion, at a
consideration of HK$1,800 million (being adjusted on
completion). The Target Company directly holds the
property at the shops on G/F, shop of 1/F (including
the staircases lending thereto from the G/F) together
with the right to use the advertising space on the
external wall of 1/F to the building of 4-8 Canton
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The transaction became
unconditional after the approval by the shareholders
of the Company and Emperor International on 5
December 2018. Completion of the transaction took
place on 12 December 2018 at the cash consideration
of HK$1,151,472,008.69. Details of the acquisition
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(1)

(2)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION — ACQUISITION OF
ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN PERFECT RAISE
HOLDINGS LIMITED (Continued)

The Company and Emperor International were both
indirectly controlled by the AY Trust. As such, under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Vendor was a
connected person of the Company and accordingly,
the SP Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted connected transaction for the
Company. Ms. Cindy Yeung had deemed interest in
the transaction by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

Details of the above transaction were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 August 2018
and the circular of the Company dated 12 November
2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION -
MASTER LEASING AGREEMENTS

On 24 May 2018, the Company entered into 2
respective master leasing agreements with Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel (collectively the
“Master Leasing Agreements”) which set out the
framework of the terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions) regarding leasing of certain office
properties or other properties (including retail
shop, signage or signboard space) from Emperor
International/Emperor E Hotel for the period from 24
May 2018 to 31 March 2021 with aggregate tenancy
annual caps being set for each of the financial years
ended/ending 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020 and
the three months ending 31 March 2021 (“Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps”).

The Master Leasing Agreement with Emperor
International became unconditional on 9 August 2019
after the approval by the respective independent
shareholders of the Company and Emperor
International; whereas the Master Leasing Agreement
with Emperor E Hotel became unconditional on 2
August 2018 after the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company and the board of
directors of Emperor E Hotel, whereupon the
Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps had replaced all
the then annual caps previously obtained by the
Company for the Tenancy Transactions.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(2) CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION - (2 FEREXZ-RHEHS (&)

MASTER LEASING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Master Leasing Agreements, relevant
members of the Group and any member(s) of Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel (as the case may
be) may from time to time enter into any definitive
leasing agreements in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing Agreement(s)”).
The terms of each of Definitive Leasing Agreement
shall be on normal commercial terms or on terms
which are no less favourable available to the Group
than terms offered by independent third parties. The
terms and rental shall be subject to arm’s length
negotiation and determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference to the then
prevailing market rents on property(ies) comparable
in location, area and permitted use. During the Year,
the aggregate amounts of the Tenancy Transactions
with Emperor International and Emperor E Hotel were
HK$171,567,090 and HK$4,140,961 respectively.

The Company, Emperor International and Emperor
E Hotel were all indirectly controlled by the AY
Trust. As such, under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, each of Emperor International and Emperor E
Hotel was a connected person of the Company and
accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
Master Leasing Agreements constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Ms. Cindy
Yeung had deemed interest in the Master Leasing
Agreements by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

Details of the Master Leasing Agreements were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 24
May 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 17
July 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(3) CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION -
CONSIGNMENT AGREEMENT WITH DR. ALBERT
YEUNG

Under the consignment agreement dated 4 November
2016 made between the Company and Dr. Albert
Yeung, the Group may at its discretion make
consignment arrangements with Dr. Albert Yeung and
his associates during the period from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019 and sell the consigned items
at its retail shops as the Directors may think fit and
beneficial to the Group.

During the Year, a consigned jewellery item of
HK$10,000,000 from Dr. Albert Yeung or his associate
was recorded. The Group had applied the same
purchasing and retail pricing policy and mechanism
to this item as those normally adopted in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group. No sale of
such item was made during the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Regarding the “Related Party Transactions” as out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, the
“rental” payments in the amount of HK$175,708,000
as incorporated in item (2) are non-exempt continuing
connected transactions and that the Company had
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S LETTER ON NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(“CCTs”") in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
(“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

AUDITOR’S LETTER ON NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The auditor had issued an unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the Auditor’s Letter had been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(“INEDs”) had reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter
and confirmed that these transactions had been entered
into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case
may be); and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Saved as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately
1.1% (2017: 2.0%) of the total turnover of the Group.
The Group’s five largest suppliers contributed to
approximately 74.4% (2017: 77.7%) of the purchases of
the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued
Shares) had any beneficial interest in the above major
customers and suppliers of the Group.
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e, DIRECTORS’ REPORT
 EHE R

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of
the INEDs are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the Executive Directors were decided
by the Board as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to a written remuneration
policy (which ensures a clear link of business strategy
and a close alignment with the Shareholders’ interest
and current market best practice), the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparisons of
market statistics. The INEDs are paid fees in line with
market practice. No individual should determine his or her
own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’s responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performances as well as market pay
level. Remuneration package includes, as the case
may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees, contribution to
pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to financial
performance of the Group and individual performance,
and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. To provide incentive to the eligible
participants (including Directors and employees), the
remuneration package has been extended to include
share options under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 32 to 56.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there was sufficient public float of at least 25% of
the Company issued Shares as required under the Listing
Rules.
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DONATIONS H K

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation WAFE RN AEBIEHEZEBIY
amounting to approximately HK$938,250. 938,250/8 7T °©

AUDITOR % Wi

A resolution will be submitted to the 2019 AGM to /EBHE{EHeMEFHETMMTARD TIIKE
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of A2 A RGN 2010 EHAE RS LIRS o
the Company.

On behalf of the Board REEES

Cindy Yeung BmER

Chairperson *5E

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019 A& - 20196 3H19H
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. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
P SRR

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to
ensure “Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency”
towards shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as
employees of the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had
complied fully with the code provisions of the CG Code
except with the deviation from code provision A.2.1
regarding segregation of roles of chairman and chief
executive officer as explained below.

THE BOARD
BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised six
Directors (three Executive Directors and three INEDs)
who possess the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the
business of the Group. The biographies of the Directors
are set out on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report under
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Executives”
section.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Ms. Cindy
Yeung (being the Chief Executive Officer of the Group)
has also been appointed as the Chairperson of the Board
who provides the Group and the Board with strong and
consistent leadership while at the same time allows for
more effective planning, formulation, implementation and
execution of long-term business strategies and overall
business management of the Group. The Company has
considered the issue of balance of power of authority on
the Board and believes the structure of the Company,
including strong independent elements in the Board,
delegation of authorities to the management, supervision
by the Board and Board committees, is sufficient to
address the potential issue on power concentration. All
Directors, who possess different experiences and bring
expertise to the Company, are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and that adequate, complete
and reliable information is received by the Directors. The
Board is of the opinion that the current Board structure
functions effectively and does not intend to make any
change thereof.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

THE BOARD (Continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience
and expertise in legal, accounting or auditing fields who
contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of
them has been appointed for an initial term of two years
which is renewed automatically for successive term of one
year subject to early termination with notice being served
by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provision under the
Articles of Association of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considered each of them to be independent by reference
to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The INEDs had been expressly identified as such in all
corporate communications of the Company that disclose
the names of Directors.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is
responsible for the leadership, control and promotion
of the success of the Group in the interests of the
shareholder of the Company (“Shareholders”) by directing
and supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic
directions and monitoring the financial and management
performance of the Group.

DELEGATION TO THE MANAGEMENT

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of
the Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to
carry out the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group, formulate business policies and make decision
on key business issues. The Executive Committee shall
have all powers and authorities of the Board except the
following matters as set out in a “formal schedule of
matters specifically reserved by the Board”:

e determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

e approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

e declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

e approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

e approving publication of the announcement for
notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules;
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. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
P SRR

THE BOARD (Continued)
DELEGATION TO THE MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e approving non-exempted connected transactions/
non-exempted continuing connected transactions
(other than those transactions took place from time
to time under the master agreement(s) previously
approved by the Board/Shareholders (as the case
may be)) under the Listing Rules;

e approving proposed transactions requiring
Shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules;

e approving major capital restructuring and issue of
new securities of the Company;

e approving the establishment of Board committees;

e approving policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, including but
not limited to risk management policy, remuneration
policy and corporate governance policy;

e approving financial assistance to Directors;

e ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

e approving such other matters or transactions as
specified by the Board or as thought fit by the
Committee or as required by all applicable laws, rules
and regulations from time to time.

INDUCTION, SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a
Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Directors, duty of disclosure of equity/business
interest in the Group and such induction materials will
also be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly
upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors have
been updated on the latest developments of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
in order to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

THE BOARD (Continued)

INDUCTION, SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the Code provision A.6.5 on Directors’ training. During
the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/
workshops/reading materials on the following topics
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training to the Company.
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Topics of training covered

Name of Directors EE# &

Bl & 2 35 FI £

Ms. Cindy Yeung
CES e g

Mr. Chan Hung Ming
BRI6 BA 5t £

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (4)

Rt

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
PRIEIS 2+

Mr. Liu Hing Hung
BEMRE

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
RERZ+

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relations) among each other.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of any legal action against the Directors.

(1)

(2)

corporate governance
TEER

finance

Bt %%

industry specific
TEE#A

regulatory
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EE
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. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
P SRR

THE BOARD (Continued) EHRE(E)
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME COMMITMENT EE2HEBRAREBEEA

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings duringthe AKAFEFEZEZFHF M EZ2BERAT ¢
Year is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

HEES BTERRR

Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance  Executive General
Committee Committee = Committee Committee = Committee Meeting
LEER
Name of Directors EE# % 2 BNuZEg yMZEE REZEE ZEE® HTZES® BRERE
Executive Directors
HiTES
Ms. Cindy Yeung (Note 1) 9/9 - - - - 10/10 3/3
mmm LT (Hiat1)
Mr. Chan Hung Ming (Note 2) 2[2 - - - - 11 -
BOBRREAE (Hi2)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 9/9 - 11 - - 10/10 3/3
BEEELE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 3) 9/9 - - 2/2 1/1 1010 3/3

BEERL (H:23)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Note 4) 9/9 4/4 - 2/2 1/ - 3/3
BRIt (fit4)
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Note 5) 9/9 4/4 11 - 11 - 3/3
BEESE (H5#5)
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (Note 6) 9/9 4/4 11 2/2 - - 3/3
BERZT (fite)
Total number of meetings held: 9 4 1 2 1 10 3
BTegzey:
Notes: WAt -
1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 1. HITZEEIE
2. Mr. Chan Hung Ming resigned as Director with effect from 1 March 2. ﬁ%,l%ﬂﬁ?ﬁi)fgmsisﬂ HEEEE=BGE R
2018 and automatically ceased to act as a member of the Executive ZEEAHEEANITTEESKE -
Committee on that day.
3. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 3. TEERZEEXRE
4. Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 4., REBEZEEGIRE
5. Chairman of the Audit Committee 5. BRZEEXRE
6. Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee 6. ¥HMEEGXRE

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of the time Z“‘ (S ESHERKAREZEL 2 FEE
commitment given by each Director; (b) the directorships R (D) R EEMIF s EETMENL T ETm
and major commitments of each Director; and (c) the NEC)ZEENEZS2ESENSEEEE
attendance rate of each Director on full Board and hisfher @&@EULKEBE ARG HERE  EEE12
respective Board committee meetings as well as general #° RAFERN > 2EESHO ML R HE
meetings, the Board is satisfied that all Directors have MMETHEEZBE -

spent sufficient time in performing their responsibilities

during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

THE BOARD (Continued)
BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals. The Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and key
officers of the company secretarial team for ensuring that
the Board procedures as well as all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
meeting agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting
in consultation with other Board members. Board meeting
notice was sent to the Directors at least 14 days prior to
each regular Board meeting. For all other board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. Board papers and related
materials which provide appropriate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors and relevant committee members at least 3 days
before each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
(on other agreed period) to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to
the Directors for their comment and records respectively,
within reasonable time after the meetings are held.
Originals of such minutes, being kept by the Company
Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution. That
Director will abstain from voting on the relevant Board
resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates has
a material interest and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at such Board meeting. INEDs, who, and
whose close associates, have no material interest in the
transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson of
the Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man
Seung, Vanessa. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and
making decision (including entering into transactions)
on matters relating to the management and day-to-day
operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/financial/treasury planning, investment and
operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing and
approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf of
the Group; (d) approving any transactions, including
discloseable transactions, exempted connected
transactions and non-exempted continuing connected
transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; and (e) having all power and authorities
of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal
Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by
the Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

THE BOARD (Continued)

2.

Audit Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the Committee),
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Ms. Chan Wiling,
Yvonne.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee held four meetings
during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2017 (“Pervious Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2018;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and
finance personnel the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

iii. annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the
Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment
of external auditor at the 2018 annual general
meeting (2018 AGM”);

v. approved the audit plans for the Previous
Year and the Year respectively, reviewed the
independence of the external auditor and
approved its engagement; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board to adopt
the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.
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s CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

P EE IR

THE BOARD (Continued) HEY(E)

3. Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 June 2008) 3. FHEZEESE (R2008F6H19H K )
The Remuneration Committee consists of three FTNEECehm=_BKEHK  EH R A
members, namely Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne BIYRTEERERL X T (EE58F
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing JE)RBEEREEE R TTESE LB L
Hung, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being oo

an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the HHEEe s AEEmEE®E ] R

Remuneration Committee is available on the websites RIIEARNRBUMER FHEES 2

of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The FEREAMRQIMEARAZEELS

Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible MEIBRE 7 MR MERE - (b)BIIE

for making recommendations to the Board on HITEE2HM RC)BERNRITEER

(a) the Company's policy and structure of all SREEEBEEFNGERNESSIR

remuneration of Directors and senior management; HER AXFEKEF2HMEBER

(b) the remuneration of INEDs; and (c) the specific GEBHRMTI - HFMWMEE SN AE

remuneration packages of individual Executive TRITT R

Directors and senior management. Details of the

remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year

are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements. The Remuneration Committee held one

meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration FTWNEESERAFERNEITZ TIER

Committee during the Year is set out as follows: EZHIWT -

i. reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation . BNEZFHEEL URNESQREE
to the Board; i

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/ i. WA TESEEaAEREE CRE
package of the Executive Directors and senior PN FE o Ui ERSZ A
management and recommended the Board to BHrMEERNEEgRLEZSE &
approve their specific packages; and

ii. made recommendation to the Board to adopt a i. BERATMEE 2 2 KEBFTBESR
revised terms of reference of the Remuneration BErnEszeiRbEs-
Committee.

4. Nomination Committee (set up on 19 March 2012) 4., BEZEZ (R2012F3F19H 5 7)

The Nomination Committee consists of three REZLEER=-RZKEAK EHAAE
members, namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, lrene BUPTESRERXR LT (T E52F
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Ms. Chan Wiling, JE) R ER T+ N ITESDHIEK
Yvonne, both being INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man Seung, T o
Vanessa, being the Executive Director.
The specific written terms of reference of the BELZEe 7 AEEmRE®E ] R
Nomination Committee is available on the websites of RIFIEARNFIBMLER - RBEEZEGZ
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The primary TEBERQOBIETIHEE A
duties of the Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing - HKNEKBEZTE ()R EEE
the structure, size, composition and diversity ZIHEBE (T ESRAZIHBEK
of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity (MBREHE]) M BREESFEE A
Policy; (c) reviewing the policy for the nomination (REESLT - ENETE - FERAH
of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and identifying TEENEFETFEMESTRLE
potential candidates for directorship; (d) making o ()T E B IERITEETMN B LI
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, FOBFASESARANEH -REE
re-appointment, re-election or re-designation of BERAFERITTMAGH °

Directors and succession planning for Directors;
(e) assessing the independence of INEDs; and (f)
reviewing the time commitment of each Director. The
Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

THE BOARD (Continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 19 March 2012)
(Continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the
Board,;

ii. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on
time commitment in performing their duties as
Directors;

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the 2018 AGM; and

v. made recommendation to the Board to adopt
the Nomination Policy and the revised terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy
aims to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest
sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the business nature
of the Company. Selection of candidates on the
Board is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election
or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

During the Year, the Company had adopted the
Nomination Policy of the Group. It aims at assisting
the Nomination Committee in identifying and
nominating suitable candidates for directorship
based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets out
the nomination criteria, the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating additional Director to fill in casual
vacancy on the Board; (ii) making recommendation
to Shareholders regarding any Director for election or
re-election at general meeting; and (iii) nomination by
Shareholders on election of new Director.
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. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
P SRR

THE BOARD (Continued)

5.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 19
March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee ("“CGC”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan Man
Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee)
being an Executive Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene and Mr. Liu Hing Hung, both being INEDs, a
representative from company secretarial function and
a representative from finance and accounts function.
The specific written terms of reference of the CGC
is available on the Company’s website. The primary
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company
and making recommendations to the Board; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of
the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (c) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the
Group on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The CGC held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and
made recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group;

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board to adopt
its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (“EWJ Securities Code”)
and the revised terms of reference of the CGC.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

e B FERPR T PR 7] 2018 455k

EHY(E)

5, PERERZEE (R2012F3F19H 5
)
ﬁ?%ﬁxﬁé 2 ([hEERZTEE]H

[
LRI ARMITEELH
EfE) - ﬁi?ﬂﬂﬂ?

ERBBE L TEEERSE - — R A
BB R R — &0 5 R & i BAE R

Ko hXERZEg ABEARES
BRI ARBRBEER - bEEREZE
S2EEREAQBRITARATEER
ZHEEERITMEESREEZ  (b)

B RERARREEBTARNE %%ﬁ
ENEZBREER : (C)flE ﬂ‘&
%%%$&$%E%§§IEE$ A
& BMITAST A (d)R W&EQ%%%
ENERERRB2BIINSEERXER

Keygsf ARmlBThEE AT ZE
ARERRERNZHE CREREZE
ERANFEEITT —REHE

INE AR ©

CRERZEERAFEANMETZT
i BEECREABRRENMAEEFGRY
i. RABTAEREERETE IR

REER
i. MAEENSRERE 2B MF

BELEE

v. RNEFRAEBEWETZITH
<l

v. BERATYTEEEATAZIME

/Rﬁﬁmiﬁ/éifﬁiWZ& Bk

w.ﬁ§$Lﬁu%x%%%E§JZﬁ

AT RI (T3 fiﬁ%iﬂi a‘”?ﬁf—r,ﬂ‘JJ)
ML RER @ 2 KIERT

Hﬂ”””ll‘?%%Ahﬁ@m °




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was
approved by the Board, plays an important role in
supporting the Board for ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policy and
procedures are followed. She reports to the Chairperson
on governance matters and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group’s affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly
complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EWJ Securities Code on no
less exacting terms than the required standards as set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed lIssuers (“Model Code”) under Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to
Directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code and EWJ Securities Code throughout the
Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to
prepare the annual consolidated financial statements
of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules. The management has provided
all members of the Board with monthly updates on
internal consolidated financial statements which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects as at the reporting
date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable and ensured
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a
“going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view of the
state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management
had provided sufficient explanation and information to the
Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval. The auditor of
the Company had made a statement about their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
P SRR

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal
control policies and procedures within the Group are
with the primary objective of providing general guidance
and recommendations on a basic framework of risk
management and internal control systems.

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls;
and (ii) risk management functions in its principal
subsidiaries for the Year as follows:-

A. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The Board acknowledged that it is its responsibility to
ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group (“Systems”).
Such Systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

B. INTERNAL CONTROL
(1) Governance Control

The control structure of the Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board

e responsible for the Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness;

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of Audit Committee;

e ensure maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines
of responsibility and limit of authority; and

e determine the nature and extent of significant
risks that the Company is willing to take
in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes
the adequacy of resources, staff qualification
and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function;

review the nature and extent of significant
risks, and the Company’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external
environment (as detailed below);

review and discuss annually the significant
control failings or weaknesses that are
identified and raised by the auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditor and
make recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design and implement the risk management
policy and procedures duly endorsed by
senior management and the Board;

monitor the Systems properly and ensure the
Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings (if any) on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness
of the Systems in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance aspects;
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P SRR

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

Internal Audit Department (Continued)

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on
the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the
Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee
and the Board on regular basis.

(2) Operational Control

During the Year, the management had analyzed
the control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein
as follows:

Approach taken: The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff,
reviewing relevant documentation of the
internal control system and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design of
the Group’s internal control system, providing
recommendations for improvement and
assessing the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the
Systems have been reported to and reviewed
by the Audit Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition and ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records that are in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules
and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial that are information for internal use
and/or external publication.

Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the
business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Company’s
business such as raw materials, inventory,
products, customer information system
and human resources. It also tracks audit
trails in the authorization system, under
which permissions and responsibility of
authorization are clearly identified and
adequate records can be maintained in the
Systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

Reports and variance analysis: Such
reports and analysis of each segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on regular basis such that the
performance of each point of sales and each
product category can be easily accessible.

Information flow: The transparent
information flow alerts the management
promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons
with the same also acts as a detecting device
for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: Insurance coverage
on inventory is periodically reviewed by the
management for sufficient coverage, and
to ensure compliance with the terms and
conditions of the insurance policies. To
safeguard shops’ assets, security systems
are installed and properly maintained in good
condition at each shop. In addition, tests are
carried out on a daily basis to ensure the
proper functioning of the security system.

Quality control: Diamonds are either sent
to authoritative and reliable organizations
for assessment and certification or are
tested internally with our own professional
equipment to assure the quality fulfills good
standard requirement. In order to provide
assurance of high quality products and
service and to enhance the protection of our
customers’ interest, the Company had joined
several associations and schemes.

Proper authorization on sales discounts:
Discount policies are properly maintained
and controlled by electronic point-of-sales
systems. Discount policies and pricing
strategy are reviewed from time to time.
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P SRR

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

(3) Financial Control

proper controls are in place for the recording
of complete, accurate and timely accounting
and management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly
financial results of operations against
budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal
financial reports are prepared to the
management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial
statements are provided to all Directors
which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects in sufficient
details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/
forecast.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

(4) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in
place to safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of an internal work team (if
required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any one or
more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate,
for the attention of the Board. The Board
shall make timely decisions on disclosure, if
necessary, and take appropriate measures to
preserve confidentiality of inside information
until proper dissemination of inside
information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which
shall be reviewed and monitored regularly by
the CGC as delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL JE\ B 4 B R 9 S B (B

CONTROL (Continued)

C. RISK MANAGEMENT C. RpeEE
(1) Risk Management Process (1) BREZEESF

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. Risk are evaluated
by the Board and management based on (i) the
severity of the impact of the risk on the Group’s
financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which
risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risk as follows:-

e Risk elimination — the management may
identify and implement certain changes
or controls that in effect eliminate the risk
entirely.

e Risk mitigation — the management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of
the risk to an acceptable level or contingency
plan for possible loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring — it involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not; accidents and other situations involving
loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

e Risk retention — the management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough that
the risk is acceptable level and no action
is required and the risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not
increase to an unacceptable level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL JE g 45 B B N S B (48)

CONTROL (Continued)

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (2) TEREBRER

Certain significant risks have been identified RNEBE D FBREEDSREETGHERF
through the process of risk identification and HEEFERNERE o  ANEEFTEER

assessment. Such significant risks of the Group
and their respective key strategies/control
measures are set out below:-

WK#EKHMM&EWQZIE
REEEHIBEEHENNAT - -

a) Damage to brand name and reputation a)

mEREERR

b)

In addition to advertising and promotional

BRiB 8RS & E SS9 M e

efforts in strengthening our brand image, the Fosih - AEE ISR E T

Group has also given much attention to S

e register of brand name and major o MRS EELE R L
jewellery product collection names; W B

e conduct customer service training and
mystery shopper reviews to ensure sales
staff service standards;

® maintain product quality by various
means from vendor selection to quality
check upon delivery from vendors; and

e brand name infringements are followed
up by legal department until completely
resolved.

Reliance on major suppliers and watch
brands

In fact, the Group’s success largely rides on
its relationship with the world’s giant watch
suppliers and top-tier brands. The loss of
key brands may adversely affect the Group’s
business. To cope with this, the Group

e centralises communication with major
watch brands suppliers within top
management;

e develops and maintains mutually
beneficial and long-term relationship with
all suppliers;

e continues to build up our own jewellery
brands; and

e arranges senior sales staff to inspect all
watches delivered to shops.

b)

o RHEPREHEINNHIE
BEEL  ERIEEARZ
AR 75 7K 3

o EBHIEREE LM Wﬁ?&
NERZEEREFIRZ
C EREREE R

4 R IR A 2R R AR EET
RE BETERARL -

3B B 1k HR A B 1 PR 7 e B R R B

FE L AEBHRINIEAKE
Het AR B M E R KA
R hERRRR - RET EmEa]
EEUARENEBEETHE
E - RELHILEAR NEE:

o HIARMEGHMBHERTS
REBEARR 2 R —
Bl

o HIffEMEMERLAERE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

c)

Substandard design and production of
jewellery

The Group’s strategy is to yield higher gross
margin and avoid of price competition with
other market players. As such, quality of our
jewellary and highly regarded designer are
vital.

The Group maintains a high quality
design team with good market trend
knowledge, measured by effectiveness of
successful product design launched.

Merchandising managers, design
managers, sales operation managers
and shop representatives review all
jewellery design before approval by chief
executive officer for production.

Production vendors selection and
regular quality performance review are
conducted by merchandising managers,
technical manager and in some cases
jewellery design manager.

Merchandising managers, technical
manager and in some cases design
manager inspect jewellery product mold
and first sample before bulk production.

All jewellery products must pass through
quality inspection by quality control team
and shop front sales team.

Scanning of diamond by equipment is
in place to avoid receiving synthetic
diamonds and procure diamonds from
international renowned suppliers.

Higher value jewellery products are
tested by reputable and commonly
recognized third-party laboratories who
issue testing certificates.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

d) Excessive and shortage of watch inventory

f)

The Group strives to be leading retailer

in bands that have higher consumer

appreciation and consequently stronger

profit yield. In order to achieve this leading

position, we

e maintain close business relationship and
communication with watch manufacturers

to strive for optimal and timely supply;
and

e gsystematic inventory review with updated
sales forecasts to determine appropriate
inventory level.

Stable supply of raw materials at fair price

In order to maintain our timely replenishment
and new product launch, we secure reliable
sourcing by

e adopting systematic vendor selection
process; and

e regularly reviewing and exploring more
attractive sources.

Stock loss or theft

Since our stock items are easily concealable,
the Group places very much attention on
safeguarding them with all practicable
measures as follows:

e CCTV monitoring and back up;
e daily stocktake at shops;
e procedures and approval requirements
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for stock transfer, and use of security EWMER  UEFNARTE
guarded service; TR
e security systems for stock locations; and o MNIFRMHEEERREL ZL
5
e insurance coverage. o KRR -
The Board will make sure that the risks facing by #$@ﬁéﬁ‘ﬁi\ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ$ﬁjﬁﬁﬁ%
the Company shall be reviewed regularly, and the ZER - mMERESETRIUEESEE
management will take suitable measures to deal with JEE B Rk o
them on ongoing basis.
D. MANAGEMENT CONFIRMATION D. EEE®RR
The Board had received a written confirmation from EEeCHECREEBERNAEEAEE
the management on the effectiveness of the Systems ZERZRBBRENEAER - BEREE
of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee and ehEFSRNREZFRGE T ITM
the Board, upon reviewing the Systems, were not BEMAIHAEEZSRZANEE B
aware of any significant issues that would have an BRERITE2BESIMERTEUHEELET
adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy M2 7B ANEE-

of the Group’s operational, financial and compliance
areas of the Systems.
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P SRR

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’
communication policy and shall review it on a regular
basis to ensure its effectiveness. The Company
communicates with the Shareholders mainly in the
following ways: (i) the holding of annual general meetings
and extraordinary general meetings, if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities
for the Shareholders to communicate directly to the
Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual
reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules and press releases providing updated
information of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group on the Company’s website; (iv)
the holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and
(v) meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis
and participate investor road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders
and general presentations are made when financial
results are announced. Shareholders and investors are
welcome to visit the Company’s website to raise enquiries
through our Investor Relations Department whose contact
details are available on the Company’s website and the
“Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of this
annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general
meetings for substantial separate issues, including
re-election of retiring Directors. The Company’s notice to
Shareholders for the 2018 AGM was sent to Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the meeting
and notices of other general meetings were sent to
Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The chairperson/chairman of the Board Committees and
the external auditor had attended the 2018 AGM to answer
questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of
the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting
had explained the procedures for conducting a poll during
the meeting.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a dividend policy which
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim
and final dividends (as the case may be) based on the
earnings attribution with its Shareholders after taking into
consideration of, inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements
for business operations; (ii) cash available, financial
liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market environment
and challenges; and (iv) future development and
investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends or
recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not
limited to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“CQ”) and the
articles of association of the Company. The Management
will continuously review the divided policy and propose
any amendments to the Board for approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
CG Code.

RIGHT TO CONVENE / CALL A GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings may send a request to the Company
pursuant to Section 566 of the CO. The request must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting, and may include the text of resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Requests may consist of several documents in
like form. A request may be sent to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form and must be authenticated by the relevant
Shareholder(s). Such request will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar and the Company Secretary
will request the Board to convene a general meeting within
21 days upon its confirmation that the request is in order.
Such meeting must be held on a date not more than 28
days after the date of the notice convening the meeting
and such notice must include notice of the resolution.

Section 568 of the CO provides that if the Directors do not
within 21 days as stated above to call a general meeting,
the Shareholders representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call
a general meeting, but the meeting so convened must
be called for a date not more than 3 months after the
Directors become subject to the requirement to call a
meeting. The meeting must be called in the same matter,
as nearly as possible, as that in which that meeting is
required to be called by the Directors. The business that
may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution
to be dealt with at the meeting. All reasonable expenses
incurred by the Shareholders of this purpose must be
reimbursed by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS / RIGHT TO CIRCULATE RESOLUTION AT AGM

Section 615 of the CO provides that (i) Shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all Shareholders; or (ii) at least 50 Shareholders having
a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting (*AGM”) may request the Company to circulate
a notice of a resolution to be properly moved or is
intended to be moved at that meeting. Such request must
identify the resolution to be moved at the AGM, must be
authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s) and sent to
the registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form not later than six weeks before the relevant AGM or if
later, the time when the notice of AGM is despatched.
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PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

ENQUIRES FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can
be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process of the financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards.
Members of the Audit Committee were of the view that
the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu
(“Deloitte”), was independent and had recommended the
Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the
2019 AGM. During the Year, Deloitte had rendered audit
services and certain non-audit services to the Group and
the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out
as follows:

Service rendered FTiE R

Audit services ZE R

Non-audit services: 3EZ SR :

— Agreed-upon procedures for continuing connected transactions

RIFBRERHETZEEIEF

— Review of preliminary results announcement
EHNFLEERE

REMASEES

BREBBASEEET ZREFARARAHE
UhE R o

RREH

BRRAIAARRZBNBFELCR FEME
BEARAR | BERREFZFRER - BERZ
HiE#Hr MARRKREEBERIBIIEL
HE@ENMEI AR AFERI AR EHRE
ZHH] -6

AL Ak B A SO

WA « AR F) 2 4R M AR A 3 B A
EAEH -

1 Bl 2 g S M B 4

ZESREERBERZENEHK
ZEED 2 B BRI SRR ER
FEEMLBEXRE - EREEGKER
o RRAZIZBENER e BER T S &TAD
TR ])BBLALTYEAEEFTEN2019
BRBFREG LEMREESARR ZZH
b e RAFERN  FEERAREREZH
R RETIHZBRYE  MAKEEN &
NFRzMeHmT :

Fees paid/payable
e ENER
HK$°000

THERT

3,589

20

10

— Preparation of accountants’ report and unaudited pro forma financial information

for major acquisition

FREBUWEEERESRE RACBZEBEUHER

— Transfer pricing documentation service
BRTEEINERE

600

68
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT g

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 64 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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W b

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

s INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B REERKARRLA

E2ERBR
(REBZMAILLZ BRLA])
o it B 3 0H

MREZEESAZHEITOEX A
BERAYBGE M RATREZNFE -
AZBEMITRERERGA VB WK EIE I
EZHEERBTEAER  MASREFRIER
BEREBERER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

HRELEE

Valuation of inventories — Goods held for resale

FE—HIFEERmZIGE

We identified the valuation of inventories — goods
held for resale as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
the judgements associated with determining the
amount of allowance for inventories.
AZBMTHEERE —HIFEERnZMER—EA
REZZE REEREERUGSVHRKRERM
EﬁJrﬁE% P REETEEREGEERAR A
M o

In estimating the amount of allowance for
inventories — goods held for resale, it is the
Group’s policy to review the net realisable value
of inventories periodically with reference to the
condition of the items and the market condition.
The management reviews regularly the suitability
of the allowance policy and the amount of
allowance for inventories that are based on the
estimation by considering factors as detailed in
the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the allowance for inventories.
REFFE-HIEFEERncBELER - 556
ZHERA/SEZBEAMRALTATE RN FEZAIE
REE - BEEBENERBREGEEMBHREMTIFHE
AEFEREZEREEMEZ M E R EER
RIEEMLRFERESHE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REHMTNAREEEREZER

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation of inventories -
goods held for resale included:
AZBMTHEFE - HEEERm2MEREEZ
SRR

e Assessing the management’'s process of
reviewing and evaluating net realisable value
of inventories, with reference to subsequent
sales information and the external price data
and performing testing on a sample basis, by
tracing to the source documents;
DEHZIHEE R ROIMBERBUR I E BB HIR
HETHENR - TEERERT KT ETFE#
WHREZREF

e FEvaluating the allowance policy adopted
by the management with reference to the
current market condition, the historical and
current sales information, pricing policy and
strategies, inventory realisation plan, ageing
and conditions of inventories;

SERTHN - BERERIHEEN  TEBEXR
REE - FEERGE - FEORK KR HERE
JEPTER AN B IBUR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT g
WA .

TO THE MEMBERS OF BREERKEERLQA
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 2EERR

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REEBEFMEK T2 HRAE])
Key Audit Matters (Continued) bR Sk B A 0 (2E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERELER AEBETNEERRERSEIR

Valuation of inventories — Goods held for resale (Continued)

FE—HFBERm2IGE (&

As disclosed in notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated e Understanding the management’'s process

financial statements, as at 31 December 2018, the of review and evaluating the work of an
carrying amount of inventories — goods held for independent external valuer of jewellery items;
resale is HK$3,067,443,000, net of allowance of BREIEBNEMERF R EIREIEB B INERE

HK$55,459,000, which represents 69% of the net {BERMEY TIE
assets of the Group.
AR A BTSRRI sE4 M 14FT# 58 - 72018512831 e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

A HFE-—FFEEMmREER3,067,443,000 objectivity of the independent external valuer
7L - BIBREEMESS,459,0008 7T - MEER EBEEEBEE and obtaining an understanding of the scope of
EEFE269% ° work and the terms of engagement; and

AHEIBIL MBI ERD 2 A ¥ - BE N RF B - A
RETFHEMRRGR &

e Evaluating the reasonableness of valuation
techniques and key inputs adopted
by the independent external valuer by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific
information and market data to evaluate the
reasonableness of these judgements.
RAHEZEHE 25BN BRBEBRZEMGHRE
BAFTE 2 &K RIS 8RR (B L HMNED L (B RD AT B
HERMMEE2EABIE 2SR -
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g INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

b
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g INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Ka-Lai Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

wR AR g AR 2T AR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HILFE
2018 2017
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE THET FHET
Revenue A 5 4,722,248 4,075,124
Cost of sales 555 A A (3,417,722) (2,985,880)
Gross profit EH 1,304,526 1,089,244
Other income H A A 6 11,240 7,793
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEAX (817,746) (776,232)
Administrative and other expenses TN HMHAX (175,672) (147,568)
Finance costs A& AR 7 (4,095) -
Profit before tax B 5 B A 8 318,253 173,237
Taxation 1A 10 (53,969) (13,546)
Profit for the year F 2 s A 264,284 159,691
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEMEE
income for the year (F3) WA
Item that may be reclassified HiE e ES 748
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmEE -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBESE
translation of foreign operations 2 T b A= R (27,435) 44,584
Total comprehensive income for the A RQ & # A AFEL
year and attributable to owners of FEZEWAERE
the Company 236,849 204,275
Earnings per share — basic BRAFN-EXR 12 3.87 HKcents#&{ll 2.32 HKcents#ill
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018
MK2018F12H31H

NI .

2017

2018

NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
BaE FET FEIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R RRE 13 1,923,019 73,047
Deferred tax assets BIET IR & 21 5,161 8,662
Rental deposits Meke 126,037 135,793
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEsmx ezl
property, plant and equipment i BN RE 18,435 5,643
2,072,652 223,145
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 14 3,096,504 2,651,111
Right to returned goods asset REEAE 2,462 -
Receivables, deposits and JE Y2 5 '715 ? & &
prepayments ?EH 15 165,564 186,148
Amount due from a related company FEUX F%L A A 20 5,034 -
Bank balances and cash R1T4 ﬁ%&fﬁ‘i\ 16 627,256 1,613,080
3,896,820 4,450,339
Current liabilities REEE
Payables, deposits received and T RIE - BEWET &
accrued charges st & 17 292,720 283,823
Contract liabilities adaE 18 10,293 -
Refund liabilities RPREE 19 3,415 -
Amounts due to related companies & BF3E N A KIA 20 4,072 4,146
Taxation payable FE 1R 36,350 17,780
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 561,822 -
908,672 305,749
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,988,148 4,144,590
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIAR & 21 1,107 1,050
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 594,673 -
595,780 1,050
Net assets EEFRE 4,465,020 4,366,685
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital N 23 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves {1 24 980,868 882,533
Total equity RS 4,465,020 4,366,685
The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 143 F64E8 £ F£1438 7 44 MR KX 272019
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of 43H19HE= %E%/E&#T&?‘J?‘ W
Directors on 19 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: 7|EER 5% %
CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
CE S BEEXE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
S EE
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e, CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
P ERORER IR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

Share Merger Other Capital Translation  Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Ra  atteE  HbRe  EREE  EXGE  REEA st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TR AL T TER  TER  TER  TAR
(note 24(a))  (note 24(b))  (note 24(c))
(Wik24(a)  (WEE24(0))  (HF3E24(c))

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2529 (42,075) 1128702 4174110

Profit for the year EEET - - - - - 159,691 159,691

Exchange differences arising  BESNEBELERES
on translation of foreign

operations - - - - 44,584 - 44,584
Total comprehensive income ~ FE2ANALE

for the year - - - - 44,584 159,691 204,275
Interim dividend paid for 2017~ 2017F R #it 8 (i 11)

(note 1) - - - - - (11,7000 (11,700)
At 31 December 2017 Ro017£12A318 3484152 (373003)  (26,19) 2529 2500 1,276,693 4,366,685
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 264284 264,284

Exchange differences arising ~ RE BN ERELELZE
on translation of foreign

operations - - - - (27,435) - (27,435)
Total comprehensive income ~ FE2ANALE

for the year - - - - (27,435) 264,284 236,849
Final dividend paid for 2017 2017 RBRE (1)

(note 11) - - - - - (39864)  (39,864)
Interim dividend paid for 2018 20185 = HR & (H11)

(note 11) - - - = - (47456)  (47,456)
Repurchase of ordinary shares  EIE& & &% (H13£23)

(note 23) - - - - - (51,194  (51,194)
At 31 December 2018 12018512A31H 3484152 (373,003)  (26,195) 2,529 (24,926) 1,402,463 4,465,020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

A BlEinE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Profit before tax B %52 A e A 318,253 173,237
Adjustments for: HE
Reversal of allowance for FERERD
inventories (14,472) (20,109)
Depreciation of property, eI 1PN
plant and equipment HiETE 33,851 33,070
Impairment loss recognised in MOE - B K
respect of property, plant and RAEER
equipment BEEE 1,761 1,135
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE FEHEmE -
property, plant and equipment e
&8 2,994 3,249
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE G 4,519 -
Allowance for sales return HEREEE 953 763
Provision for customer loyalty BE R BT B B
programmes 1,700 -
Interest income A 2 WA (10,393) (5,951)
Interest expense A EFZ 4,095 -
Operating cash flows before RetEEESEEA
movements in working capital IRERERE 343,261 185,394
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE 2z (gm)md (449,825) 47,689
Decrease (increase) in receivables, EBUHE &4 &8
deposits and prepayments T ERIE R A
(3% 1n) 14,346 (2,300)
Increase in amount due from a JE YL 8 & N R 5k I8
related company 3 10 (5,034) -
Increase in payables, deposits FERTRIE - EWET 2
received and accrued charges K pEET B RE M 20,373 53,329
Decrease in contract liabilities ERHBERD (7,184) -
(Decrease) increase in amounts FE I REE N RIFRIA
due to related companies OB ) 18 A0 (74) 468
Net cash (used in) generated from &% (FTH) 52
operations ReF8E (84,137) 284,580
Income tax refunded R [BIFT1F - 28,986
Income taxes paid ERATER (30,536) (847)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM ek (FA)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FEzREFE (114,673) 312,719
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e, CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

b oomanini
For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE
2017
HK$’000
FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REETE
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEYE BEIK
property, plant and equipment REzENEZS (17,493) (14,965)
Proceeds from disposal of property, & « #2s N
plant and equipment 2 FT1S 38 - 84
Purchase of property, plant and BEMHE HIX
equipment B (84,279) (14,866)
Placement of time deposits with FEAREEHRAR= fl
original maturity over three months A LA E & EHIF K (134,850) (17,644)
Withdrawal of time deposits with RIREEI A 2 = @
original maturity over three months A LA E & FEHIF K 215,879 106,635
Interest received R &R 10,393 5,951
Net cash outflow arising Wi B AT /B8 1 B PTEE A
on acquisition of subsidiaries ZBEE M FRE 25 (1,148,471) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REZEE (A T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZEEFE (1,158,821) 65,195
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Dividends paid B ATAR B (87,320) (11,700)
Repurchase of ordinary shares 6] 8 & i A (51,194) -
Bank borrowings raised EEBCRITEE 33 522,745 -
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTEE 33 (3,256) -
Interest paid =ENEASS 33 (4,095) -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RESEER TS (FA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZEREFE 376,880 (11,700)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HReERBEESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Ei4) #inE 5 (896,614) 366,214
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT £#lz B¢ RE £
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR EEW 1,532,051 1,154,399
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEXREEH w28
changes (8,181) 11,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HX&ZHE&KRE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR EEY 627,256 1,532,051

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF B2 RHEEZEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS @829

Bank balances and cash IRITHE R MRS 627,256 1,613,080
Less: Time deposits with original B REIEIE S =1
maturity over three months AU E&yE

73 = (81,029)

627,256 1,632,051
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

1.

GENERAL

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
holding company is Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”) which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
that its ultimate holding company is Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
which is in turn held by STC International Limited (“STC
International”), being the trustee of The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the settlor and founder
of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre, 288
Hennessey Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) have applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments
HK(IFRIC) Foreign Currency Transactions and
—Int 22 Advance Consideration
Amendments  Classification and Measurement of
to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
to HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments  As part of the Annual Improvements to
to HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle
Amendments  Transfers of Investment Property
to HKAS 40
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B ZE2018F12A31HLFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. M F 7T K 8846 5T 7 o B 285 i o5 e )

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ 7 78 B 5 i b M2 AN ) (2)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE AEERBAEMNHITRKEITETBHK

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT HER (&)

YEAR (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new BRIt EIN RAFEERAZEHE]

and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had RSB EBYBREENESAEERE

no material impact on the Group’s financial performance Al &LMIEVZHHKEEEE&HNR&/YEA

and positions for the current and prior years and/or on FERAVBERRTBZIFETEEATE -

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

2.1 HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 2.1 HEHBEREGFRFISHKAET G
CUSTOMERS #)Z A
The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time AREERAEEERRANB B G
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 ¥&%£E'J$15?B‘?\° BB EwEER
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the 155}?fo§; ?;\/% ﬂ+’EE‘J%187ﬁW
related interpretations. A BBGHERBNREZES AR

ERERE-

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively ALEEEVEREBHG ﬁ%; E'/J
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this §155ﬁ Hﬁg%fgﬁﬁm‘%/ﬂ”mfﬁ =
standard recognised at the date of initial application, ZR2018F1A1HBEREME A f§
1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial ry’u NN E' /HHZ%{T%E\E/\\\/HE
application is recognised in the opening retained Tﬂ%%/ﬁﬂﬂpﬁﬁ% ’ Hﬂﬂ?ﬂi\iﬂﬁ;@
profits and comparative information has not been B o BEON - ARIBE B A i’EE\‘J%B
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the S BIBEIRY  NEREEBREE ¥T2018
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has %1)%1\&}#1575\&2 #7389 18 B %
elected to apply the standard retrospectively only 8| - ﬂﬁe‘ﬂgﬂﬁ’éﬁiﬁ E'EH AT B E 2
to contracts that are not completed at 1 January FIBEMERRAEREBRES
2018 and has used the practical expedient for all A A BRIz %3?%;%’75@%{{(@
contract modifications that occurred before the ai Hﬁﬁfi% \llttmr%)ﬁ/\ttﬁ:éfﬂﬂ
date of initial application, the aggregate effect of TET%%C\% %Eirﬁﬂ‘]%fwﬁﬁl/}?/} K HE R
all of the modifications was reflected at the date of RERE ETHBRARAKLARA
initial application. Accordingly, certain comparative Eb 1 o
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue
and the related interpretations.
The Group recognises revenue from the sales of K%fﬁ%}fﬁ RPEE &£ 2 SEER R IR
watches and jewellery and commission income, HHEBRAEBRATRERBA -
which arise from contracts with customers.
Information about the Group’s performance ﬁ%§$$ﬁ§)ﬂ§7ﬁﬂﬁ%§%$%ﬂ
obligations and the accounting policies resulting %j5?}ﬁﬁﬂE$(ZEﬁvaﬁc&%ﬁEﬁ(ﬁ
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes Z B 3 RIR M EE R 3BFE o

5 and 3 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZ=2018F12A31BLFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEFIMTRT S ARAE T 7 8 1 s e i e 1)
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (I 7 ¥ B 5 i i M2 AN ) 2)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE AEERFNERNVFITIRLIETERBTE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT HER (F)
YEAR (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 2.1 BHEMBRGENFEISTERAEFEF G
CUSTOMERS (Continued) HZ A (H)
The following adjustments were made to the THFETIR2018F1 A1H H4R & B
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement BARRABREPEERZSEEL - K
of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items **““%%%%Z#&%IEEI,@W%W)\ °
that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
®2018F151H
REEBHE
R REER
20175128318 F155ER 2
EHzERE BNNE RE{E
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TR TEL
Current Assets hRBEE
Right to returned goods asset REREE (a) - 1,844 1,844
Receivables, deposits and MR - ke RERFE
prepayments 186,148 (1,844) 184,304
Current Liabilities ik =L
Payables, deposits received E5E  ElETe R
and accrued charges fEirBH (b) 283,823 (18,384) 265,439
Contract liabilities AEE (b) - 15,777 15,777
Refund liabilities BHEE (a) - 2,607 2,607
Notes: M EE
(a) As at 1 January 2018, the Group expected to refund (a) %2018$1H1EI C REETEH I RET
some of the considerations received from customers and PEWREBEFPZRE Bt - BHASRS
hence such balance was reclassified from payables, FERFIE - EWFI e REFEREHNS
deposits received and accrued charges to refund BERREE AEETHERATF K
liabilities. The Group also recognised an asset (and @Euqu&*‘JﬁE%ﬁE(ﬁﬁﬁé‘fﬁ%ﬁ
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for its right ERRA) - Bt - BRI R B ERGK
to recover products from customers and hence such R RENFEERIEER fﬂ&ﬁ?

balance was reclassified from receivables, deposits and
prepayments to right to returned goods asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

JEE R T e KB 5T A i B 85 e o 4 B
([ v B 2 e o Y 10 1) (42

REERBERNHITREEITTENE
HER(E)

A ==X

2.1 HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 2.1 BBHMBERGERFEISHERBEF G

CUSTOMERS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of
HK$15,777,000 in respect of sales of watches and
jewellery, previously included in payables, deposits
received and accrued charges, were reclassified to
contract liabilities for HK$15,777,000.

The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated

HZYA (4
Mok - (48)

(b) M2018F1A18  HIHEEENKEM
WE 2 B P IEf 518 15,777,000 7T &
LRt A2 BB - BRG] & M JE
ATERAEMOBEEAEE5,777,000
/;PSTE °

TR EREEM B RE LB FES
SR ANEEMN2018FE12A31H 242 4E

statement of financial position as at 31 December HMBRABRERERATFEE 256 E
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss mhEAEERARERGEEESR
and other comprehensive income and consolidated ERPEBRITEHEBEZIEE - KR¥X
statement of cash flows for the current year for each PEXE OMRBELEFEAA -

of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

HEEUMBRRBER TR

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position

Amounts without
application of
HKERS 15

RER
BAMERS
EHIE155T
MERK ENDE kx|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEL TR

As reported

Adjustments

Current Assets RBEE
Right to returned goods asset BEREE (a) 2,462 (2,462) -

WA - Be RENHE

Receivables, deposits and

prepayments 165,564 2,462 168,026
Current Liabilities RBEE
Payables, deposits received ENTE  ERETE R

and accrued charges EAER (b) 292,720 13,708 306,428
Contract liabilities AhaE (b) 10,293 (10,293) -
Refund liabilities EHEE (a) 3,415 (3,415) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

2.

2.1 HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group expected to refund
some of the considerations received from customers and
hence such balance was reclassified from payables,
deposits received and accrued charges to refund
liabilities. The Group also recognised an asset (and
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for its right
to recover products from customers and hence such
balance was reclassified from receivables, deposits and
prepayments to right to returned goods asset.

As at 31 December 2018, advances from customers
of HK$8,593,000 in respect of sales of watches and
jewellery, previously included in payables, deposits
received and accrued charges, were reclassified to
contract liabilities for HK$8,593,000.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers,
under the Group’s customer loyalty programmes, are
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions
and the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated
to the award credits is measured by reference to the fair
value of the awards for which they could be redeemed.
As at 31 December 2018, the consideration allocated to
the award credits of HK$1,700,000, previously included
in payables, deposits received and accrued charges,
was reclassified to contract liabilities for HK$1,700,000.

2.

A T B R M RE

JRE R 6T e KA 5T A i B 85 e o 4 B
([ v B 2 e o Y 1) 1) (42

REERBEROHITREEITTENE

4R

A ==X

| (%)

2.1 HHBEHBGHRTEBISHERAEF G
A (4F)
HESUMBRRBERZEE (H)

M aE -

(a)

M2018F12H31H - AEEEHERE
HoBWBEFZAME At - BEEH
MEMZE BRI REABREN
NEERFABE - AEENRERRS
WEERZEMEREE (LHAERFRE
HERA)  Fit - BEAHHEERR
B e hBNRBESDEEREE

MR2018F12H31H » FhisEEHRLNKE
MU ER 2 & F T8 {1 51 188,593,000/ 7T A
ERIFTEFAZ A ZIE BRI & KE
TEREH O BEEA K AES 593,000
5T o

EAERFREAEE 2EREH
BESRBEZEMEENAEASZ T
ZRARG EPBEREERREZA
R BERFTHER REG TEE ZH
HITNE - PEEHBEZRENZ2EZ
EAFRBZBEZARBENE - R
2018%F12A31H - D=2 HE 2B
1,700,000 7t A 5 B FT et A 2 FE 1 3K
BBl e REABRETHEEZA
#8 1&1,700,000 7T °
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P A B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

JEE R T e KB 5T A i B 85 e o 4 B
([ v B 2 e o Y 10 1) (42

A EE R E AR ET RSB ERUE

HER ()

A ==X

2.1 BBHMBERGERFEISHERBEF G
AN (FF

gﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁf&%@ﬂixi&%t%

Amounts without
application of

As reported Adjustments HKERS 15

RER

ERMBRE

ERE155%T

MEHR Eil X}

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TR TET

Revenue WA (a) 4722248 15,678 4,737,926

Cost of sales HERA (a) (3,417,722 (15,678) (3,433,400)
Note: B E -

(a) Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised sales of
watches and jewellery on a gross basis, i.e. the Group
was considered as a principal, due to its significant
exposure to credit risk of customers. Upon application
of HKFRS 15, the Group is considered as an agent, the
performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of
watches and jewellery as the Group did not obtain the
control over the goods before passing on to customers.
This change in accounting policies resulted in a
reduction of revenue by HK$15,678,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Revenue from commission
income, reported on gross basis for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$17,184,000.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

e B FERPR T PR 7] 2018 455k

(a) WRIBEBESEFERFE18S  NEBIKE
HHEREEIGKEHEER B2 B
REAZEANEFEERR  ~EE
WREBEEA - ERABEBHIE®RSER
E155% AEEREAREA  ERE
HNETHARIBHEERKREELTHE
IR ASEEEERE R TEFY
P dnl ARSI o BT BREE)E
HE E2018F12A31H IEFEE 2 WA
415,678,000 7T - H E=20174F 124
SIBEFEREBERIASTUASL
17,184,000 7T °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F A 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12 A3 1HILEE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. WERBST B 484G 5T A s o 7 e 7 v H|
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([F s A A ]) (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE REEBRERNFITIREETE BT
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT HER(E)
YEAR (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 2.1 HBHMBERGENEISHERAEF G
CUSTOMERS (Continued) HZPA (H)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash HEeHeRERZEE
flows

Amounts without
application of

As reported Adjustments HKERS 15
RER
ERBHRS
ERFE155T
MER HE ZE8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET THET THET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BExk
Increase in payables, deposits ~ EfIFE  EMGI & R
received and accrued charges  JE:TEIEM (a) 20,373 (5,484) 14,889
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (a) (7,184) 7,184 -
Provision for customer loyalty BELHERE
programmes (a) 1,700 (1,700) -

Note: ffsE -

(a) As at 31 December 2018, advances from customers (a) M2018F12A31H > MIHEERENIKE
of HK$8,593,000 in respect of sales of watches and ﬁﬁHSZHXZ@)5?51#%7\1,%18,593,000?%73EEI
jewellery, previously included in payables, deposits ERIFTET A Z BRI IE - BEGT & R FE
received and accrued charges, were reclassified to Ef%?)ﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁ?;éi’JEEB 593,000/
contract liabilities for HK$8,593,000. JC
Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, BEMEEPIREBEAEE 2 BER EMNE
under the Group’s customer loyalty programmes, are BESHE AMIBENARRS T
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions ZWARG  EHRERERREZR
and the fair value of the consideration received or A BERTHERMEMAG T HRE 2 M
receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and HITHE - EEREZREHZ2EZ
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated EATHM o REZ AR BEFE - B
to the award credits is measured by reference to the fair 2018F12A31H - =2 HE 2R E
value of the awards for which they could be redeemed. 1,700,000/ 7T £ 5t Al BT &1 A 2 & 1 3¢
As at 31 December 2018, the consideration allocated to NS T TE }ﬂi%ﬁ%i{ﬁ?{é\
the award credits of HK$1,700,000, previously included #)81&1,700,0007 7T

in payables, deposits received and accrued charges,
was reclassified to contract liabilities for HK$1,700,000.
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e, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B G0 B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERBT R BB RT 7 s o 2 e o v H|
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ % HE%EL ) (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE AEEBRFIEMPOFITIRLEITIETEBHH
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT HER(E)
YEAR (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2.2 BB B AR EoRE & T A

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, and 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018
(date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE REEBRERNFITIREETE BT
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT HER(E)
YEAR (Continued)

JRE R 6T e KA 5T A i B 85 e o 4 B
([ v B 2 e o Y 1) 1) (42

2.2 B W B AR EYE £ TR
(#4F)
REEEEBERN T 26 E

AEEEABEEWBREERFIRF

2.2 HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all MBS At2BHEEESE Mt
trade receivables from contracts with customers. RERFPEHNZBE S ERFIAEM
Except for those which had been determined as SREMEHEEERE KRzFER
credit impaired under HKAS 39, trade receivables BREABEEAE 89%?82%&7%1:.%\
from contracts with customers have been assessed BEI  REFFPEHNZE ZHEWK

individually with outstanding significant balances HEEEE 1 - E’klﬁt/\u}éZFaEH?E

with customers, the remaining balances are grouped
based on internal credit rating and past due
analysis.

The Group has therefore estimated the expected
loss rates for the trade receivables from contracts
with customers based on the assessment by the
Directors, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, there would be no material
impact on the accumulated amount of impairment
loss to be recognised by the Group as at 1 January
2018 as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost
including other receivables, amount due from a
related company and bank balances are assessed
on 12-month ECL basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

BRMEIE 2 BRAK &R+ &R T A4S Al
2;%5”W*Bfmféféﬂ?%&&?@,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&m

Bt "EBCENSEMEZTE
BRABRFAEHZE SHEIRGRIA MG
TEHBER - e ANEBEEABERE
BEEEEX  EERBEEEHE
Elj%SQFﬁﬁﬁﬁgu/bZ§u+i§Eﬁm ’ 71_
m%lﬂﬂwomimmﬁﬁé 2
m@;&ﬁaigﬁigﬁﬁméﬁ £ K

?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%WKﬁlJ%ZEf@ _?;léfF ( B
S R ORI A R SR E R
RITHE %)Z?EHEFEEEETEIFEHB
B ) 90 B 58 A 2R S AR E R 0 - T
1218 A B REE B BEEEITHE -
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e, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B G0 B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

JEE R T e KB 5T A i B 85 e o 4 B
([ v B 2 e o Y 10 1) (42

CEMENRERZHITREEITEBE
HW|EER
AREBYEBPEBATEBMEBRKRE
M R BB B RELER

not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases' BRI REER e
165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BB RE LS R4
F175
HK(IFRIC) Uncertainty over Income Tax EE (BBRyERE  MEHEEZ EER
—Int 23 Treatments’ 2EZE2)
-REE23%
Amendments to  Definition of a Business* BRI REES E3 Wit 2
HKFRS 3 FIRZBIA
Amendments to  Prepayment Features with Negative RO BIRE R RERTEHLBAHE"
HKFRS 9 Compensation' FIR 2R
Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets BB REES REEBEMENAGAE0E
HKFRS 10 and  between an Investor and its F10R LA GE BLERIALE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? EH|E28F 2 BITA
Amendments to  Definition of Material® ERGHENEIRR EAZESRS
HKAS 1 and EAQIERE8H
HKAS 8 ZIBRTA
Amendments to  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or ERSENE19%  HEBHT  BRALE
HKAS 19 Settlement’ LIBRTA
Amendments to  Long-term Interests in Associates and BReRERZE8T  REERARAELE REER
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures' ZIEETK
Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BAN RS BAN EREER2015F E2017E
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle! LEFTA BEERLE

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 1 MR2019F1A1B k2 &t 2 FE BRE AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 R TFEEZBE 2 ERB 2 FEEBREE
determined i

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 R2021F1 1Bk 21216 2 FE AR AR

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for 4 REKAHLEERBRE AW EhkER

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

HAR2020F1B1B k2 BBz EEFE
HERAK 2%

20201 A1H Sz & Fith 2 FE HRE A
BR T SCRTIL 2 35T & 78 B 35 ¥ i 22 Al Sp
ESRHEAMA MR REEFT BB
M REEIRA RARREHEE P HHREK
WEEBAZE -

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 5

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the
Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS
16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
operating lease payments as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$558,897,000 as
disclosed in note 28. An assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases.

2.

A T B R M RE
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CEMGEMARERCFIREBITEEH
HHEER (£)
EBMKEBREERNFEIREE

BB B B E 165 BB H AR
AT E PR & IR 3| A — (B
AHET - BAMBEE LR E16RBRE
@fﬂﬁﬁ%@%ﬁ%%w%ﬁgﬁm%
RE-

BRI RMEERNF16RRIBETEREE
EEAEPEVKENHERRB AL

RERESEMEEREEEI)N  K2HE
HpEHENEZR2EABASTEERR
i WHABEAERAEEERE AR
BEMEEAENRABZAK -

EREEENIIZAANGTE - MERTIR
PRA (& T BISMESLER S1) B R 51T B KR
EEEAE ITHHEEGEEMNEHNAE
MEL AR - HEABMI LA IFNZA
XNz HENFREFE - KR -HER
BEERMERBERNFTUAR (AT EHE)HE
SEFNFEMELAR - RSRED
Bms  ARBREFEGELEHEHENK
2IREERERE - BERABTBHER
SEAFE16Y ARBEKAEHEREL
HENKOERAZEMBHMD - 2515

MERTNRE -

BLAN - BB B R R B B 165% B R E 5
BHOWE -

Wkt sE28 AT &

558,897,000/8 7T ° ¥ H AR - R F LB
BEEBREVBRELEAE165KETHE
ZEHE - BEBEBWHREELE165%
& AEEBRMAZSTHER-RERE
BENBENEE RIFFABEETAE
BEIEHES -
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P A B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$126,037,000 as rights
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and
such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
paid would be considered as additional lease payments
and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets.

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) -
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO”").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZ=2018F12A31BLFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEGHBUR (#)

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell NABEDRFTEBHMSE2EENRF K

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly FRGPHEEENWNEKEEZEAEAY

transaction between market participants at the NZE®E MIARZERESEEIER

measurement date, regardless of whether that price is Al fE R EM A ERM G - EmiG2 R

directly observable or estimated using another valuation ERFEAPHEENAEEERGER

technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a EENBBEZ2HES  AEERGHETEE

liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics KEBZAABERNESZEXEET ARG

of the asset or liability if market participants would take 2B SR BRRFIETERS

those characteristics into account when pricing the SEEAE I AR BEIDIGILEEETE -

asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value B R E B IS 2ER B85 AR 5 4

for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these HEEF7NHBE 2 AR D AERE 2 NRR

consolidated financial statements is determined on such 5 BREBSHENFI7THRHEEREN

a basis, except for share-based payment transactions ZHERS UWREAREEIBHELE

that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based WIARBEIHE (NBEEGTEAE2

Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope REERNZIEEFENEEGTEAE

of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some 365 A E 1B 2 B FREME)BRIN

similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net

realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-use in

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value BN M BmREmMSs - A EBETER

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 BAREBEFEH ABE 2 IBRIEER

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value ANAhEBEAEZE A AHIEHHEEER

measurements are observable and the significance of MofEE—H —RR=ZF FBEWOT

the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in o i&ﬁg ABEEAEER= B8
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that RGO R EESBERERT
the Group can access at the measurement date; i}@Zaﬁ&{a (R

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o M ABERMEEK E{fﬁ?ﬁi
included within Level 1, that are observable for the Faﬂaﬂﬂ‘}gﬁﬂZiﬁ 2$IE (RIEE—
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and A2 REBRIN)

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset o —HMABEBEREBEEXABGEMNTAH
or liability. BR7 8 ABUE -

The principal accounting policies are set out below: FESFHBEREINNR T :

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION SEEEHEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate ,&?QHM%;&%&@%K@ﬂ&$@ﬂ¢§%ljz

the financial statements of the Company and entities ERLHEWNBARZHESRE - HBIUT

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control 1= - B ZARND R JES R 4 -

is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee; o HHIREBEYERITEREN

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its ° .@@51&5“5%2%%%75% Ew=]
involvement with the investee; and HESMZOER: &

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. o AEEHETFEENIMEEZZOR o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an {‘rﬁﬁ%fﬁfﬁ’%iﬁ%ﬁ_\ﬁﬁﬁz B R =

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there — B A FHIEE  NEFe S

are changes to one or more of the three elements of q@ﬁpﬂgﬁEg?tﬁ;lj&ﬁﬁg‘k °

control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B o O B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES UNDER
COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining businesses
in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been consolidated from the date when the
combining businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the consolidated entities are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of
the consolidated entities from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the consolidated entities first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter
period.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY NOT
CONSTITUTING A BUSINESS

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to property, plant and equipment
and financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(UPON APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P A B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(UPON APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2)
(Continued)

CONTRACTS WITH MULTIPLE PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF
TRANSACTION PRICE)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including customer loyalty programme,
the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis, except for the allocation of discounts and
variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

VARIABLE CONSIDERATION

For contracts that contain variable consideration
including the customers’ right to return goods, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or
(b) the most likely amount, depending on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

REFUND LIABILITIES

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration
received from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(UPON APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2)
(Continued)

SALE WITH A RIGHT OF RETURN/EXCHANGE

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the
following:

(a) revenue for the transferred products in the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled (therefore, revenue would not be recognised
for the products expected to be returned/
exchanged);

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) for its right to recover products from
customers.

PRINCIPAL VERSUS AGENT

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (PRIOR TO 1 JANUARY
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns and trade
discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease.
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HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B o O B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018FE12A31RILEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes, are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit or loss.
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P A B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or a cash-generating
unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or a cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value-in-use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or
a cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is determined
on a weighted average basis for gold and specific
identification basis for watches and other jewellery
items depending on the nature of the inventory. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables from contracts with
customers, other receivables, amount due from a related
company and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31B I EE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B ZE2018F12A31RILEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEFFIECR (&)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) ERMIA(E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application THEERE (BB F228ES X EH
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) BB HREEREIRE) (&)

(Continued)

(i) Definition of default (i) E#RZEZE

For internal credit risk management, the Group BAMEERREEMS  AEER
considers an event of default occurs when B ENEHERERNIT A SN
information developed internally or obtained from FTigER R BEATKAIGERE
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely HA(BEAER)EE2HIE (T
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full ZREANEB AR RFEAE o
(without taking into account any collaterals held by

the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers TEEXA AR XEERE &
that default has occurred when a financial asset TR EE®AEBBR0H - EM&?.%E???
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group EEA RIARERECEERZE

I]]

has reasonable and supportable information to BERTHEERVENEZEST A5
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is =

more appropriate.

o

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

(iii) T EECEERE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables from contracts with
customers when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are all classified into
loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables from
contracts with customers, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable from contracts with customers is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related companies and bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

DERECOGNITION

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

ALLOWANCE FOR INVENTORIES

The management of the Company reviews regularly
the suitability of allowance policy and estimates the
net realisable value of inventories based primarily on
condition of the inventories, current market conditions,
historical and current sales information, pricing policy
and strategies, inventory realisation plan, as well as the
ageing of inventories to identify slow-moving items to
ascertain the amount of inventory allowance. In addition,
the management also appoints an independent external
valuer to perform valuation on certain jewellery items as
reference for allowance consideration. The Group carries
out an inventory review at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance when the subsequent estimated
net realisable value of inventories is less than the original
cost, a material allowance may arise. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of inventories for goods
held for resale is HK$3,067,443,000 (net of allowance
for inventories of HK$55,459,000) (31 December 2017:
HK$2,630,444,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$70,837,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4., MhEAMEREZ BERFE (£)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT ME - BERREBZBETMG
AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less ME  KERFRBREAANRE R ZITE
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated RERAEEEYER - NERAR K&
impairment losses. At the end of the reporting period, BIEMEME HELREZEREERE N
the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, BEERAAMNPRETZEEECLEY
plant and equipment to determine whether there is any EEE - ¥ WRELEBIRENEE
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment HESHBUEEMAR (MEB) FF & A
loss. Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for BEZRHE HEFEXREERIRTIERE
possible impairment on a specific asset basis or in (BEFHEER . CHEEE LTBER) (G315
groups of similar assets, as applicable. This process HEENBEEHENELNARAKBESRE o
requires the management’s estimate of future cash flows M EREFRHBEEMRETS - Bl
generated by each asset or group of assets, of which HEEEFEEEMBEHIATAEES
key assumptions include discount rates, sales growth HAEMWMOWE R MMl eEe 2
rate and margin. For any instance where this evaluation BEEM - R2018F12A31H * W% -
process indicates impairment, the appropriate asset’s s R 2 BRA(E &1,923,019,000%
carrying values are written down to the recoverable 7L (20174 : 73,047,000/ 7T) - HIBRRE
amount which is based on the value-in-use calculations 9,603,000/8 7t (20174 : 7,842,000/ 7T ) °
and the amount of the write-down is charged against
the results of operations. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
is HK$1,923,019,000 (2017: HK$73,047,000), net of
impairment of HK$9,603,000 (2017: HK$7,842,000).
INCOME TAXES FRrEH
As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax asset has MR20185F12H31H - AR KREeTaEET A T4
been recognised on the tax losses of HK$189,658,000 BB R B R AR M HOR - B itk I R
(2017: HK$204,775,000) for certain operating = M B A | 2 B 18 518 189,658,000/ 7T
subsidiaries due to the unpredictability of future profit (20174F : 204,775,000/8 7T ) MERRIEIEF IR
streams for these subsidiaries. The realisability of the BE SHELHBEETFTEABEEA
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient B 5K i B S AS PR AT R I A 2 FEER R
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be FEEME o MR B A TERT AR K& 2R
available in the future. If the future profit streams become IR AIERELERIBEE - WLAR AER
predictable in the future, a deferred tax asset will be SHARRIERTL RN AR -
recognised to the extent that future taxable profits will be
available in the future.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K4 &R
Revenue represents the net amounts received and WAECKWEREREXE DA EREE R
receivable for goods sold less returns and net of trade RSP MAMBEREZIREARIAZFEE -
discounts, and commission income from services
provided.
Information reported to the chief operating decision REBFTBLEERFTE ([TEBELERR
maker (“CODM?”), the Executive Director and Chief E]) OB AEERTESERETEZITHA
Executive of the Group, for the purposes of resource 8 LB RO R D 80 & IR BT E E 3R
allocation and assessment of segment performance CERTEERREREM o IIN AR
focuses on the locations of the operations. This is EBETTHENREE 2 EE - RBRIBEEEH
also the basis upon which the Group is arranged and BHRELRESREES I AEE 2 EE
organised. The Group’s operating segments under DEBMNRES B RGSAKEMME -
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are operations located in BEEDPMEEZRETEREIHEE
Hong Kong, Macau and other regions in Asia Pacific. The ERKE T ELERRENSHAEE
revenue generated by each of the operating segments Z A 2o IR - BLEKE 3R E L
is mainly derived from sales of watch and jewellery. No EOEIEEHERIE -

operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B o O B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31BILEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSEER (#)
(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

U AR ERAREM 2 T2 R R
DEHH :

B Z2018F12A31H L& E

S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau Asia Pacific  Elimination Consolidated
PN
e 5! HirE HsH &e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER T TEL THEL
Revenue WA
External sales HNRBE 3,639,735 286,387 792,771 - 4,718,893
Inter-segment sales* DEREE 126,556 20,898 2,624 (150,078) -
Commission income [EETON 3,176 179 - = 3,355
3,769,467 307,464 795,395 (150,078) 4,722,248
* Inter-segment sales are charged at cost  * A HEBEERA AL H
Segment profit DEbaxl 406,752 21,942 58,086 = 486,780
Unallocated other income FAOREMIA 11,240
Unallocated administrative RAETHREBRS
and other expenses (175,672)
Unallocated finance costs RARBERAE (4,095)
Profit before tax B AR 318,253

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017E12A31B ILEE

Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau  Asia Pacific ~ Elimination ~Consolidated
DX
BA il Hii & HisH &£e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL T TEL T
Revenue N
External sales MREE 3,046,688 234,296 794,140 - 4,075,124
Inter-segment sales* NEHEEE" 116,421 23,068 - (139,489) -
3,163,109 257,364 794,140 (139,489) 4,075,124
* Inter-segment sales are charged at cost  * 4 SR 4 E SRR X H
Segment profit A EbEA 237,350 17,679 57,983 - 313,012
Unallocated other income RABEABA 7,793
Unallocated administrative FARTBREMES
and other expenses (147,568)
Profit before tax B A& R 173,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the gross profit generated from each segment including
gross profit directly attributable to each segment, net of
selling and distribution expenses. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures
of the Group’s segment reporting that are regularly
reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets
and liabilities are presented.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ2018F12A31ALFE

Hong Kong

£
HK$’000
TEn

Operating lease payments LERERH 323,000

5.

F A 5 R B

WA T 4y BRERE (42)

A 2WmMEED B2 ST BUR B 3T
ZASBEGEBERMAR o o Ebm A& D
BAELZERM - a%%%a‘ﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁ%
Fl - WHIRHE M WAL - WM ER
LRERREETER  UEERD B RET
Mo ERBZFEELE -

THEEREE
IRLERRECHERN ZAKE D SR

EPUWEFAEENAG - ALt A
BEBRHAMEEREE -

H fth 7 & & %
HTJ\/\_L /mﬁjq‘l‘i E :

Other
regions in
Macau Asia Pacific  Unallocated Consolidated
TX
AP Hitr & ROE &e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TEL TAR TET

19,748 76,638 12,090 431,476

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12A31HLFE

Hong Kong

g
HK$000
TiEn

Operating lease payments mElENT 330,597

Other
regions in
Macau  Asia Pacific ~ Unallocated Consolidated
EX
il Hirtt & RAE oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAr TEL TEx
12,583 79,847 8,638 431,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not
included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ2018F12A31HLFE

Hong Kong

R
HK$’000
TER

Nx BERZENE

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 16,466

5.

WA T 4y BRERE (42)

Hitvn BMEHR (2)
M 22ERKEEPRMELRFTAD
BEAN D BEEF B 25

Other
regions in
Asia Pacific
EX
HiE RAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER

Consolidated

58
HK$°000
TER

Macau Unallocated

AP

HK$°000
TER

3,202 8,140 6,043 33,851

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31HLFE

Hong Kong

Gl
HK$000
TR

Nx BERFENE

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 19,944

Other
regions in
Asia Pacific
ox

2P At E
HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEx

Unallocated ~ Consolidated

L &a
HKS'000 HKS/000
TR TAR

Macau

2,155 6,754 4,217 33,070

REVENUE BY MAJOR PRODUCTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
its major products:

TEERZWA
AEEREETEEMIWASHET

2018 AVIV4

HK$’000 HK$000

FET T

Sales of watch HEER 3,660,692 3,238,603
Sales of jewellery HERE 1,058,201 836,521
Commission income — Watch HBe WA —Eik 3,355 -
4,722,248 4,075,124

All revenue are recognised at a point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018

f T B A Mt

HZE2018FE12A31RILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA RAERER (#)
(Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i & & ¥

Information about the Group’s non-current assets,
excluding deferred tax assets, presented based on the
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

EERAEME S E 2R 5 R
RBEE GEERAAER) 2 AR HE
BylmT

As at 31 December 2018
2018512831 H

Other
regions in

Macau Asia Pacific Consolidated

Hong Kong

B P : PN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THT T =

1,982,948 31,535 53,008 2,067,491

FRBEE

Non-current assets

As at 31 December 2017
M20179F12A31H

Other
regions in
Asia Pacific
S

Hirit & g8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

33,468 214,483

Hong Kong Macau Consolidated

2 AP
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR

160,902 20,113

FRBEE

Non-current assets

RAEFE MEREAEEE—RFZ
WS AR EE T ELFE10%HIA L o

No revenue from a single customer amounted to 10
percent or more of the Group’s total revenue for both

years.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. H g A
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Interest income from bank deposits SRITTFRF B HBA 10,393 5,951
Others Hip 847 1,842
11,240 7,793
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WhEERA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TFET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERNS 4,095 -
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8.  BRAL AT ¥ A

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FTET FET

Profit before tax has been arrived at after B B AT @ A 2 0B

charging (crediting): (Gt A) TFIIER -
Auditor’s remuneration % HRD B & 4,287 3,609
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales HEKARN 2 FERA

(included reversal of allowance for inventories (‘& #& @l 17 & & 5
of HK$14,472,000 (2017: reversal of allowance for  14,472,000/% 7t

inventories HK$20,109,000)) (note a) (20174F « O 17 58
120,109,000/ 7T) )
(Mt 5Ea) 3,423,524 2,972,858
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE B 4,519 -
Depreciation of property, plant and TLATIEE SR WE -
equipment used for: M R EREITE -
— retail shops — ZEEH 27,808 28,853
— offices i YN 6,043 4,217
Impairment loss recognised in respect of P - MR KRR
property, plant and equipment 2 BB B (Eﬁ')\TTEﬁZ
(included in administrative and other REAMFR) (MaEb)
expenses) (note b) 1,761 1,135
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE GIHTE - HBRR
property, plant and equipment Rz EE 2,994 3,249
Net exchange loss (gain) PE W B (Mes) /58 3,869 (1,472)
Operating lease payments in EAHEEME IKEHE
respect of rented premises (NES
— minimum lease payments —HERENR 401,577 401,144
— contingent rent —kAEE 29,899 30,521
Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration 8 TR - BEE £
(note 9(a)) Bl (Fff 5X9(a))
— salaries and other benefits costs —HekEMENE 268,662 235,876
— retirement benefits scheme contributions —IRIRIEF T B £ ?ﬂ 22,998 20,574
Notes: GEE
(a) During the year, reversal of allowance for inventories (a) RERN RNERBRNBEERD AN F&
recognised in profit or loss was attributable to the continued RIREEBHE

upswing of the watches and jewellery business.

(b) BRBAHAMMESET/EFHNKREARNE

(b) Impairment loss of approximately HK$1,761,000 (2017: HA IEEEAESZIQO18¢12H31Elifﬂ*%“;ﬁ
HK$1,135,000) was recognised in respect of property, plant EZHESEABMNGEIERBEENIBST R
and equipment in the segment of other regions in Asia TAEMIE DY W MR TR ERRR
Pacific during the year ended 31 December 2018 as part (EEE1E491,761,00058 7T (20174 : 1,135,000
of administrative and other expenses in profit or loss with 5%%)1¢%fﬁﬁk&ﬁ{ﬂﬁ§m—§ﬁ’ﬁ R

reference to the estimated value-in-use of the cash generating
units as certain shops in the segment of other regions in Asia

Pacific did not perform as expected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9.
EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Details of the emoluments paid and payable to the
Directors and Chief Executive for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

B BETHAEREE WS

(A) EERFETHAE
HE2018F K2017FE12A31H ILFE
ZEMEENEEREETHRAEY
e FEBmT -

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B £2018F12A31H L FE

Retirement
benefits
scheme

contributions

Performance

Salaries related
and incentive
allowance payment

FekEl RRRMAX
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEn TER

Fees Total

g
HK$°000
TER

BIER
HE &t

HK$°000
TiEn

HK$’000
TER

Executive Director and YTESRTEAUAER

Chief Executive
Ms. Cindy Yeung LT 225 3,383 1,000 46 4,654
Executive Directors YHES
Mr. Chan Hung Ming RERLE

(resigned on 1 March 2018) (R2016%E3/71A&E) 25 250 1,000 - 1,275
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BLELAE 225 - - - 225
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BEERT 225 - - - 225
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RERZT 215 - - = 215
Mr. Liu Hing Hung PRELE 215 - - - 215
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne RERTT 215 - - - 215

1,345 3,633 2,000 46 7,024
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9. wH - FEITBANE KEBEMSE &)
EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Continued) (A) EERFETHRABR (#F

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B ZE2017F12A31H L FE

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme
Fees allowance payment  contributions Total
\ BIKGER
e  FeREE RARBREX HE IS #et
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR THER THER
Executive Director and BOTESRIENHAE
Chief Executive
Ms. Cindy Yeung BHREXT 150 3,198 230 18 3,59
Executive Directors BES
Mr. Chan Hung Ming RBHEE 150 1,440 120 - 1,710
Mr. Wong Chi Fai ELBEE 150 - - - 150
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa ~ E&EZ L 150 - - - 150
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTEES
Directors
Ms. Yip Kam Man ERZaL
(retired on 24 May 2017) (R20174524 B £ (F) 80 - - - 80
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May PRELL
(retired on 24 May 2017) (R2017#5F24H K1) 80 - - - 80
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RER T 200 - - - 200
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEERE
(appointed on 24 May 2017)  (R201745/24H & (F i) 122 - - - 122
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne REXRLL
(appointed on 24 May 2017)  (R2017456524H EFin) 122 - - - 122

1,204 4,638 350 18 6,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9.

EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(B) EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, one was (2017: two were) Director and
Chief Executive whose emoluments are included in
note 9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining
four (2017: three) individuals were as follows:

A T B R M RE

B BEATBAE KEB WS @)

(B) BEE
AEBZRANERFMER S - —{L
(20175 ML) BES R EETHA
8 o HE2HME TN LitfiiE(a)
BATNPOAL (20174 : =h71) 2 H BN

2017
HK$'000
TERT

2018
HK$°000

FRET

Salaries and allowance Fre MoERL 4,905 3,525
Performance related incentive FRIBBEIFAY
payment 1,718 610
Retirement benefits scheme RREFIFT IR
contributions 104 45
6,727 4,180

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BLE

1,500,000 /& 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BLE

2,000,000 7T

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BILE

2,500,000 &7

BEZFHMBELT

Number of employees

BEA
2018 2017
2 2
1 1
1 -

Notes:

(i) The fees paid or payable to the Chief Executive,
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors shown above were for their services in
connection with their services as directors of the
Company.

(i)  The salaries and allowance, performance related incentive
payment and retirement benefits scheme contributions paid
or payable to the Executive Directors and Chief Executive
shown above were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.

MaE -

() BENHENIETERAE HTEFEK
BUFRTESEZHRS HEREREST
ARBEEMREZREERA -

(i) ENHENRTEZERTIZITRARZ
ekl RRBEFRXFRKRER
AR EREREEAEEEBEM
RHUZRBER -
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e, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B G0 B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B ZE2018F12A31HLFE
9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9. HH - REITHBAE KEEME #)
EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(B) EMPLOYEES (Continued) (B) E& (&)
(iiiy The performance related incentive payment is a (i) REEBERZDIRAEBZHBEREAE
discretionary bonus determined based on the financial 2 BIBIELL -

performance of the Group.

(iv) No Directors or Chief Executive waived any emoluments (iv) # ZE2018%F12H31H K&2017412H31
in the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December HIEFE BIEESHEEMAME -
2017.

(v) During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 (v) E ZE2018F12H31H K2017F12H31
December 2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group ALHEFEE  AEBBERITAAEEE
to any of the directors of the Group or the five highest ERAuEsHMEESSEMNE -
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining EEMAREB SR IMARNEE %K
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. B - sSKEEBEBREFRIE -

10. TAXATION 10. BiIH

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FER

The tax charge for the year comprises:  FRFIES HEIE :

Current year: REFE :
Hong Kong BB 41,840 5,935
Macau SR P 3,004 2,575
Singapore T N3 5,722 1,444
50,566 9,954
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFE (BEESB)
BETR

Macau B (172) -
Singapore N3 - 389
(172) 389
Deferred taxation (note 21) EEF IR (M FE21) 3,575 3,203
53,969 13,546
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council 20183 A21H - A AERE(2017
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill FEFE (EE]) (B75) &M B =) ([1EH)
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits BER]D)SIAFEHMES o ZIEHBERR
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 2018F3H28H % EFEK AEE TN EH
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. HEER - BEFESHMAS  5EKE
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first B E 8B F2008 8 7T im M 15 128.25% i &
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity B - MRB200E8 B T 2w M iR 16.5%
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million MEE - AFENESHRRGER &
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not EER &M BEEIZ165% 28 —BiX

qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will B

continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. FiIH (&)

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at
12% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% for both
years.

Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 21.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

BERE FEHEMAFHEWENS 2
THHESAUBRRRTESE KBR-
it IEFEZ2EEFNESHRY LG ER
T M2 16.5%5F & o

RPIFT SR TR IR B W A F E 2 (58
AR MR EA2%5H o

FINE PTG TR IR B 5 2 2 (A5t EER TR
it FR B RAT %5 E o
REREARLME ([HRE]) CEMESH
E(REMBVE]) REERGBHEZE
WERRE - NABEFBEZHE RGN WIE
FREZBER25% °

5 3 7 25 8 BUR BB 201855 12931 B
IR 2 (st BB R B K 24% 31 8 o
B2 S # 5 B B 21 -

AEFRAEGFS B REMEEBAR
KR ZBRB AR M SRR ¢

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before tax B 75 B i A 318,253 173,237
Tax charge at Hong Kong 1£16.5% 2 BB MG B K
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% Bz BiIA 52,512 28,584
Tax effect of expenses AAMBRAZ 2 MB 8
not deductible for tax purpose 7,493 8,264
Tax effect of income not taxable MARBWMA B G T 2
for tax purpose (8,506) (8,030)
Effect of different tax rates of B AR R EMBEE R
subsidiaries operating in other KEZTRABER 22 E
jurisdictions (1,230) (792)
Tax effect of tax losses m) A e R A TE B 4R 2
not recognised Mg e 4,567 1,604
Utilisation of tax losses BALAIARERZHIBERE
previously not recognised (512) (17,899)
(Over)underprovision in BEFE 2 (BEER)
respect of prior years BETE (172) 389
Others HAb (183) 1,426
Taxation for the year FEMA 53,969 13,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

¥ R a B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HILFE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. BLIH (4%
The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is the B2 EBNNEGMEDNAEEREFE
domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation PRERDEER 2 B R o N E M RDERE
of the Group is substantially based. Taxation arising in BELS2RENIZABEERE 2 BB
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in RAHE o

the relevant jurisdiction.

DIVIDENDS Ji 5.

Dividends recognised as BRERNFEDIK
distribution during the year: 2R
2017 Final: HK0.58 cent 20175 R Hf ¢
(2017: Nil) per share & 1%0.587% 1L
(20174 : £%) 39,864 -
2018 Interim: HK0.70 cent (2017: interim 2018F H Hf -
dividend HK0.17 cent) per share F[%0.7078 1
(2017¢ 1 B B
0.17%&1) 47,456 11,700
87,320 11,700
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final RERATEE  EFEHIREEZE2018
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December F12A31H I F E RH R B T HR0.55%
2018 of HK0.55 cent (2017: HK0.58 cent) per ordinary il (20174 : 0.588 1) - B HARBEAR
share, in an aggregate amount of HK$37,287,000 (2017: 37,287,0007% 7T (20174F : 39,864,000/%
HK$39,864,000), has been proposed by the Directors JT) rﬁ;ﬁﬁf\\ﬂ% IR RBAFRKE FERER
and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the EHAEE
forthcoming annual general meeting.
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 12. BB R —FAR
The calculation of the basic earnings per share KANBEAANEBEERERZRTIRET

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on DI E
the following data:

EARNINGS &

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000

FERT FExT

Profit for the year attributable to the owners ~ BtEt EEREARRBF 2
of the Company for the purpose of basic NG 2PN
earnings per share EFEERA 264,284 159,691

NUMBER OF SHARES KR# & B

2018 2017

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Efu.ﬂ'ﬁ’_ﬂngﬁﬁﬁﬂ

for the purpose of basic AR ANKE
earnings per share $f:]%(a 6,825,404,677 6,882,448,129
HE S
No diluted earnings per share in both years was EEL ﬁﬁ1$flﬁ5§§‘f‘r/%i§£>§a@
presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary B R ME SR AL E 2 RS R EE

/.

shares in issue during both years. R o

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

e B FERPR T PR 7] 2018 455k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
ERE YT

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold ~ fixtures and
building  improvements equipment Motor
*ﬁg\ﬂ@ HENE B £E vehicles
kigF BEIR 3 e
HK$\’00_0 HK§'000 HK$\’0® HKS\'O@
TAL TARL THERL TEL
CoST A
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1 18 - 305,547 75,408 873 381,828
Exchange realignment [E R - 3,134 1,011 13 4158
Additions HE - 21,000 12,043 668 33,711
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (32,59) (3,026) (638) (36,260)
At 31 December 2017 20175124318 - 297,085 85,436 916 383,437
Exchange realignment AR - (1,229) (508) (10) (1,747)
Additions HE - 58,308 30,237 440 88,980
Acquired on acquisition of WENBLRRMEA (Mi25)
subsidiaries (note 25) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
Disposals/write-off HE /3 - (15,700) (7,667) (8) (23,375)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31R 1,800,000 338,459 107,498 1,338 2,247,295
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ HTERHE
At 1 January 2017 R201751R18 - 254,945 50,486 765 306,196
Exchange realignment E 5 % - 2,412 497 7 2916
Provided for the year FRBE - 24,697 8,283 90 33,070
Impairment loss recognised RERBRZAEEE
in profit or loss - 653 482 - 1,135
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /R - (29,562) (2,727) (638) (32,927)
At 31 December 2017 R201741231A - 253,145 57,021 204 310,390
Exchange realignment ERAE - (1,073) (265) (7) (1,345)
Provided for the year ENEE 4,793 17,258 11,549 251 33,851
Impairment loss recognised RERBRAEES
in profit or loss - 1,761 - - 1,761
Fliminated on disposals/write-off & /R - (13,858) (6,515) (8) (20,381)
At 31 December 2018 20185124318 4,793 257,233 61,790 460 324,276
CARRYING VALUES kAR
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A31H 1,795,207 81,226 45,708 878 1,923,019
At 31 December 2017 2017412318 - 43,940 28,415 692 73,047
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Y3k - Weds S sttt ()

The items of property, plant and equipment above are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Leasehold land
and building
Leasehold improvements

Over the unexpired lease
terms

Shorter of lease term or
16.7% — 33.3%

Furniture, fixtures 9% — 33.3%
and equipment

Motor vehicles 18% — 20%

Leasehold land and building is located in Hong Kong

and held under a finance lease.

LW HENRERENERELER

THFRFE -

MELHRET i NENYi

BEMERETR 1R #55016.7%£33.3%
‘ (e AE)

Btk REBREE 9% Z 33.3%

& 18% £ 20%

HETHWMBFUREL HERMEMEE
FEAFEA -

Impairment loss of approximately HK$1,761,000 (2017: MR AEMIESPEF/EHORER
approximately HK$1,135,000) was recognised in respect T8 B - A B@i& 2018 12A431H I+
of property, plant and equipment in the segment of FERKAEHRSELASBNNGHETFEREE
other regions in Asia Pacific during the year ended 31 BEPpo KEMmtE S 2 WE - #

December 2018 as part of administrative and other
expenses in profit or loss with reference to the estimated (2
value-in-use of the cash generating units as certain )
shops in the segment of other regions in Asia Pacific did

not perform as expected.

14. INVENTORIES ##&

2018 2017

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHBxT

Raw materials R 29,061 20,667
Goods held for resale FHEE & m 3,067,443 2,630,444
3,096,504 2,651,111

15. MEMGKIA ~ 374 R AT K IE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT

15. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

FET

KEEFANZE SRR

Trade receivables from contracts

with customers 65,855 79,334
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (4,519) -
61,336 79,334

Other receivables, deposits and Hinfe s ~ e &
prepayments TEﬁL/AIE 84,378 99,378
Other PRC tax recoverable E o ip B A U B R TE 17,347 6,318
Other Singapore tax recoverable MR D03 AT Uk B A5 I8 2,503 1,118
165,564 186,148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018FE12A31RILEE
15. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS  15. MEW K IEH ~ %4 M FE AT 308 ()
(Continued)

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit
cards with the settlement from the corresponding
banks or other financial institutions within seven days.
Receivables from retail sales in department stores are
normally collected within one month.

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
as at 31 December 2018 were advance payments to
suppliers of HK$20,935,000 (2017: HK$29,878,000)
and rebate receivables of HK$32,516,000 (2017:
HK$39,891,000). The remaining are individually
insignificant.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates.

TEHE - RURSHNEBERITHREMSE
MEBIN2ERRREBEREN KA
SRRIZEEHEEZRUREAE—RR—EA
WH&HX °

N2018F12A31H > M EME X
20,935,000/ 7T (20174 : 29,878,000/
70) M FEUR [@H132,516,00078 7T (20174 -

39,891,000 L) Est AR EUNFRIE -~ 3%
© MTE A - Eﬁ%miﬁﬁﬁlﬁiTéti

UTREZERFIERERAREZERH
fﬁ(}ﬁmﬁfq&)\ﬁﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ i) 252 8k

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHT
Within 30 days 30BA 52,249 65,253
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,362 12,821
61 - 90 days 61290H 2,536 488
Over 90 days im0 H 9,708 772
65,855 79,334

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired BL s Bl 8 B RECE 5 FE W B E Y

relate to receivables from credit card sales and
department stores sales for whom there were no history
of default.

Included in the trade receivables balance were
receivables from department stores with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$4,835,000 (2017: HK$4,763,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collaterals over nor charge any
interest on these balances.

BRACEZEARHERAERARHE
Z FEMURIRAE R o

BoRWREBELEGTRIEREALEAS
4,835,0007% 7T (2017¢ 4,763,000 7T)
2%%#%@““ IE - RERBH
ZERED B frﬁzk%ljzﬂ{%ﬁmﬁ
FEEE ANEBTERNSESEEE
{A] 45 48 G s W B ] 71 8. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31BILEE
15. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS  15. MEW K IE ~ %4 M FE A K08 ()
(Continued)

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED
B 360 145 {8 R 15 8 2 B 5 FE W 5 1B B i

2017

HK$’000

:F/%TC

Overdue 1 - 30 day(s) @WHEI1ZE30H 3,386
Overdue 31 - 60 days #HI312=60H 457
Overdue 61 — 90 days #HI612=90H 148
Overdue more than 90 days B HAFEE90H 772
4,763

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired BE ; i L H AP
relate to department stores sales that have continuous FEWRIBRIER B BiE S HEESE -
settlements subsequent to reporting date.

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
DEBTS RREHEE T

As at 1 January 2018 ©K2018F1H1H -
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 4,519
As at 31 December 2018 720184 12A31H 4,519
Trade receivables that are not denominated in the WIHENEEEBER 2 WEERKHBECE
functional currencies of the respective group entities are FEUWFRIBIN T -
as follows:

HK$’000
FHT
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) SRPIT (DRFIT]) - 1,529
16. BANK BALANCES AND CASH l6. $RAT it K Bl

As at 31 December 2018, bank balances carried interest EAZOJ 8¢12ﬁ 31H - f%_ S R IR F
at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 1.10% per 0.01%=1.10%H T IHF KETE °

annum.

As at 31 December 2017, bank balances included R20179F12A31H - iRT i:&ﬁ?@%fﬁ%
time deposits of HK$81,029,000 with maturity over 100%:‘11 76%m£ﬁﬂﬂ*ﬁ+ HE?@/HE*I@
three months that carried interest at prevailing interest 151 E’\Jﬁmﬁﬂf %81,029,00078 T - #
rate which ranged from 1.00% to 1.76% per annum. l:ﬁﬁ TRBIZEFO. O1%i1 76%3’3”7%*”
Remaining bank balances carried interest at market AR BEERAR=(EAKUT -

rates which ranged from 0.01% to 1.76% per annum with
maturity three months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
f T B A Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

16. SRATHE R M Bl & (&)
WIENSEBEE 2N ERIEZEIT

16. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances and cash that are not denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective group entities are

as follow:

HK$ BT
MOP RPITT
United States dollars (“USD”) Ex(ZExT))

HEHRRBRSWOT
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FHERT
1,108 1,909
37,831 32,084
2,085 1,213

17. PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

17. BEAFsIE - CWGT & & s & H

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FERT

Trade payables B HENFIE 190,625 139,170
Other payables, deposits HMEMNKIE  2WET €

received and accrued charges K FEFTE A 101,714 139,497

Other PRC tax payables H th B A 18 FE AN IR 381 5,156

292,720 283,823

Included in other payables, deposits received and
accrued charges as at 31 December 2018 were
accrued bonus and incentive of HK$15,863,000 (2017:
HK$18,980,000) and effective rental payables of
HK$21,590,000 (2017: HK$37,500,000). The remaining
are individually insignificant.

The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period are

AHEMEMNZRE BREITE LE
B RN2018FE12A31ALEE AR
L4 N 415,863,000 7t (2017
% 118,980,000/ L) R EREMNEE
21,590,000/ 7T (20174 : 37,500,000/
Jo) c BRI AETETEANEHE -

EIRNFERERPRIZERAHZS
ZHRESMT

as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FHT
Within 30 days 308 158,937 134,090
31 - 60 days 31£260H 26,048 4,154
61 - 90 days 61£290H 4,208 194
Over 90 days HiE90H 1,432 732
190,625 139,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

17. PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

The Group normally receives credit terms of 30 to 60

17. REAF RO -~ CWGT & R RERH 8 ()

AEE-RERZEEHR/I0E60A -

days.
Trade payables that are not denominated in the jiélEL,( BERE2MEEETEZES
functional currencies of the respective group entities are FEE IEZZDT
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET THET
MOP RFITT 5,436 4,252
uUsD ETT 23,225 6,988

18. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 18. A #HIA1E

31.12.2018 1.1.2018*

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Lz FET FET

Customer deposits XPEE (a) 8,593 15,777
Customer loyalty programmes BB HET S (b) 1,700 -
10,293 15,777

Rz ERERAT RV B RE LR
FIGEAFHBR B

The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the
application of HKFRS 15.

Notes: B E

(a) Advances from customers of HK$8,593,000 (2017: (a) BEEERRKEMKRZEFE
HK$15,777,000) were received for the sales of watches 318 58,593,000 JT (20174 -
and jewellery. 15,777,000/ 7T) °

(b) Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, (b) ’EE% EEPEBREBEAEB ZBERAME
under the Group’s customer loyalty programmes, are BEGREZ EMEENDARASZ T
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions %Hﬂ()\x% ERE S ERREZR
and the fair value of the consideration received or /LFfﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁgﬁiﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁfgz%ﬁ
receivable is allocated between the goods supplied ETHR EREREDBEZ
and the award credits granted. The consideration wT%RT@ZﬁEZQﬁEE%%°E’:‘
allocated to the award credits is measured by reference 20185 12A31H ' nEREZRER
to the fair value of the awards for which they could be 1,700,000/ 7T ©
redeemed. As at 31 December 2018, the consideration of
HK$1,700,000 was allocated to the award credits.
The customer loyalty points have no expiration. BEEAWE By W mERBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

19. REFUND LIABILITIES 8 #k f1 f&

2018
HK$°000
THET
Refund liabilities arising from right of return REBEEZRFAR 3,415
20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED 20. JEW (fF) B 2 2 6] sk
COMPANIES
The amount due from a related company mainly FEWEEAR A ETEZEANME T EE
represents deposits placed for financing activities. The 2¥e EWEEBERARREERFRER
amount due from a related company was fully settled BrasiE
after year end.
The amounts due to related companies mainly represent ENEEAFRBFTESENBEEARZ
the rental, electricity and air-conditioning expenses He BTELREABIL  UEREMRE
payable and service charge payable to related g o
companies.
These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and ZEFBEREBEER 2ERREREE -
repayable on demand. The related companies represent Bi&E N Al RAY Trust(STC International &
companies controlled by the AY Trust of which STC EZT A EZH 2R
International is the trustee.
21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. ¥ %L i JH
The following are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) AEERRBZEERBEE (AE) REAR
recognised by the Group and the movements thereon REERBAFEZEHAT :

during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

accounting

deprecmtlon

MEREFIE

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1H 10,819
Exchange realignment ME 5 S (4)
Charge to profit or loss for the year RFEREZ R (3,203)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A431H 7,612
Exchange realignment ME H, 38 B 17
Charge to profit or loss for the year RFREZ R (3,575)
At 31 December 2018 M20185F12A31H 4,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose:

21. BEIERLIHE (&)

oE SRR S BB IR Rk
LEHMBAEENRBEBEE TR
T ER ¥R = AR AE 0 I8 45 B4

5‘?%5”?%1%
&

2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FET

Deferred tax assets RIETHIRE E 5,161 8,662
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIEBE (1,107) (1,050)
4,054 7,612

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RERARLEERD KREBHEA A HIKH
tax losses of approximately HK$189,658,000 (2017: RIR A 7 A8 I8 E 18 47189,658,000
HK$204,775,000) available for offset against future 7B 7T (20174 : 204,775,000/ 7T) ° IS
profits. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised RASHAMARE LATEE - AL IBE B
in respect of tax losses due to unpredictability of future EE{J;EL@{IE BE -NEM T/iﬁglf_u%g%
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are ZHBRARIMEEARNAERHEEER®

losses incurred by subsidiaries in other jurisdictions of
HK$172,272,000 (2017: HK$204,615,000) that will expire
in the coming years (please see the table below). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. Tax losses
of HK$52,937,000 (2017: HK$44,398,000) have been
expired during the year.

The unused tax losses available for offset against future

profits are analysed as follows:

Will expire on:

%E%HBWEK%IEEiﬁ»ﬁsz,zm,oooﬁ%x
(20174 : 204,615,000/ T) 2 EB (R T
R) - HitE B ER LS - FRNEEW
2 B 78 &5 18 352,937,000 7T (20174
44,398,000/ 7T) °

AAEEER RN 2 ABRHEEED
T -

2017
HK$’000

FET

BT 5 B BfER

31 December 2018 20184 12A31H - 55,152
31 December 2019 201912 A31H 26,249 26,249
31 December 2020 2020 12A31H 48,181 48,818
31 December 2021 2021412A31H 79,556 72,205
31 December 2022 202212 A31H 2,191 2,191
31 December 2023 20234 12A31H 11,347 -
31 December 2025 2025912 A31H 4,748 -

172,272 204,615

Unrecognised tax loses that may A PR HAAS ¥ 2 im oK

be carried forward indefinitely R IEEE 17,386 160

189,658 204,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

22. BANK BORROWINGS $R474i% &

e B

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FExT
Carrying amounts repayable: ARNATHREERZ
AREE -
Within one year —FNR 561,822 -
Within a period of more than one —F L B BBME
year but not exceeding two years 77,689 -
Within a period of more than two ME EBTBRART
years but not exceeding five years 103,788 -
Within a period of more than five years RFENE 413,196 -
1,156,495 -
Less: Amounts due within one year B FIARERELA
shown under current liabilities R—FNEE
- (561,822) -
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FIAZEREBEZ &5 594,673 -
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rate ranged RITEERBEBRTAZFS ([HHRT
from 0.9% to 2.25% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered RIZEF B 1) IN0.9%E2.25% 2 )F B) & 7| K
Rate (“HIBOR”) per annum (2017: Nil). B (20174 - &|) o
As at 31 December 2018, the weighted effective interest R2018F12A31H - AEEEEZ MEE
rate on the Group’s borrowings is 2.88% (2017: Nil). BRFIR A2 .88% (20174 : ##) o
The Group had pledged a property of HK$1,795,207,000 REEFED G —IEEE,795,207,0007% 7T
and related interests to secure banking facilities granted ZERMBENE - UEAKREBERIE
to the Group. In addition, corporate guaranteed was also TREZERR o RAT M AE
issued in favour of the banks by the Company to secure EEZBRTREMABRITIRMEDEER -

banking facilities granted to Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL A

24.

Number of
ordinary shares

EBRHE

2018

Share
capital
BEN
2018
HK$’000
TET

2017
HK$'000
TER

Issued and fully paid BETRAR
At beginning of year ) 6,882,448,129  6,882,448,129 3,484,152 3,484,152
Shares repurchased [E18 KRR R
and cancelled (102,990,000) - - -
At end of year FIR 6,779,458,129  6,882,448,129 3,484,152 3,484,152

During the year,
cancelled 102,990,000 ordinary shares.

the Company repurchased and
The

corresponding consideration of HK$51,194,000 is

debited to retained profits.

Further information is

disclosed under the Directors’ Report section.

RESERVES

(a) Merger reserve arose from the group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) undertaken
by the Company to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange in 2008.

Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of:

(i)

(i)

(iiil)

the difference between the nominal value of
share capital and the amount due to Emperor
W&J Holdings capitalised for issue of 344
ordinary shares of US$1 each in a subsidiary
of HK$343,997,000 prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

the capital contribution of HK$6,000 by Emperor
W&J Holdings in Emperor Watch and Jewellery
Company Limited (subsequently renamed as
Prime Sharp Limited, a then fellow subsidiary
of the Company) (“EWJCL”) prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

promissory notes in aggregate of
HK$373,006,000 issued in exchange for
shares in the subsidiaries as a part of Group
Reorganisation;
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24.

FR - AAFEEIFEE102,990,0000%
BAR - M ERES1,194,000/ 7T AR & %

Feriikr - EHE—FTENRESTERE
RIFEE o
fiti 5
(a) BHFEEAARRRABEBAR KD
mzoos&@ﬁ%xﬁﬁimﬁﬁ%%z}&%
RErEESEHAAE((EEEAR]D AT
B
(b) HEMREFERE NS EZ L%
(i) REBEEMER - RAEESEN
HREBRKEERREBEREL

(B 173440 B A B & I M &1
En2EBRKRG) 2EHNERE
343,997,000,%75

(i) REEERKEEREEEEFTA
HIJ%T;’&%%’%EK?ﬁﬁ AR (H
1% 78 APrime Sharp Lim ed =S

Hﬂ%$@ﬁ?2lﬁ§ﬁﬁ%@ﬂ
(TEWJCL]) z 1 &6,0008 7T :

~—

EREBEEHR 2 8 - LB
% Al Z iy 1T 2 AL RIE
& $£373,006,000/% 7T :

(iif)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

o B R b
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ2018F12A31HLLFE
24. RESERVES (Continued) 24. bt ()
(b) Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of: (b) EfREFEIB T SBE 2B (&)

(Continued)

(iv) the excess of the consideration paid for (iv) A — % FEFE AR A SR U B8 — R B /8
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary NRIFEIMER 2 B BB
from a non-controlling shareholder over the RSN E E2010F12A31R
carrying amount of non-controlling interest IFFE Z BRE{E927,0007 7T
of HK$927,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010;

(v) the shortfall of the consideration paid for (v) REZE2010F12A31B ILFE M
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary —ZIFER RSN E—ENEA
from a non-controlling interest of HK$4,063,000 AEIMEE ENRETREE
during the year ended 31 December 2010; 4,063,000 7T

(vi) the reversal of reserve of HK$295,000 arising (vi) B E20114 12831 EI&EFE 5l
from the deregistration of a non-wholly owned Rk —FE3E 2 & M B A 7] M 8
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December [@ 7 & #295,000/8 It )Si
2011; and

(vii) the reversal of HK$28,000 and HK$5,000 arising (vii) B 22015F 12 A31H k20144
from the deregistration of a wholly owned 12ﬂ31EIJJ:¢V 5B 3T it — A
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December ZEWBR )?'J%'é [5128,000
2015 and 31 December 2014 respectively. 5%7?&5,000;‘%7% °

(c) Capital reserve represented the excess of the value (c) BARBIEEZERKE (FE)ER

of net assets acquired over purchase consideration N A 1987 F W HEWICLZ & & 5

paid to EWJCL by Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) BEABEEREZHD -

Company Limited in 1987.
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s NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥ R a B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HILFE

25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

25. W Fff g A W)

On 12 December 2018, the Group acquired entire
equity interest in Perfect Raise Holdings Limited
(“Perfect Raise”) and its subsidiaries (together,
“Perfect Raise Group”) and the amount due to a fellow
subsidiary of Perfect Raise at cash consideration of
HK$1,151,472,000. This acquisition has been accounted
for acquisition of an asset. Perfect Raise is an investment
holding company. Perfect Raise Group is principally
engaged in property investment in Hong Kong.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition (which is 12 December 2018) are set as

MR2018F12A12H REEBE LB K E
1,151,472,00078 jr W BE SH 45 15 A% B IR A A
(EG D REMBAR (GBIOESBER])
ZEHBREREMEG CRRKB AR Z
HIE WWED ARAEERE -HB5 A
— BB AR - HBEBETENES
WMEYEREER -

RYEE R (AN20185F 124120 R 22 WK
MAERREWT :

follows:

HK$’000
FET

Property, plant and equipment M - e R 1,800,000
Receivables and deposits FEWRIAE R IZ & 2,106
Taxation receivable EIEER R 1,253
Bank balances and cash RITHBER S 3,001
Payables, deposits received and accrued charges JEfTFRIE - EWET & RIERTER (17,882)
Bank borrowings RITEE (637,006)
Total identifiable net assets AR EE I EERE 1,151,472
Purchase consideration settled in cash NIRe#EECBERE 1,151,472
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : FIlBAZE & RIREFEY

Eeh (3,001)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of WIEEBEBES 2

Perfect Raise Group FIR M 1,148,471

26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26. & A B A P

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents, debt comprising bank borrowings
and equity attributable to the owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of
capital and risks associated with the capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new
bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

27. @ TH
A. 2RTEER

2018
HK$’000
FE T
Financial assets PHEE
Financial assets at amortised cost B SH K AT BR
TREE 726,440 -
Loans and receivables B W GRIE - 1,739,008
Financial liabilities LHEE
At amortised cost B SEAK AR 1,401,292 193,431
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HERREEEEREE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, amount due from
a related company, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, other payables, amounts due to
related companies and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in their
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
of the Company manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities are exposed primarily to
the financial risks of changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates (see below).

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (see note 16 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 22
for details). The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates on bank balances and HIBOR
arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings. The Group aims at
keeping bank borrowings at variable rates. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any
interest rate movements based on interest rate
level and outlook. The management will review
the proportion of bank borrowings in fixed
and floating rates and ensure they are within
reasonable range.

$$@Zirﬁlﬂ BIEE 5B WK
8 Hﬁﬁfﬁlﬁz RIE - R E R B K
T ERTT ﬁ%&fﬁi g 5 %
A Hﬁﬂf’iﬁ RIE -~ ETRIE R A
IEJ//\&fETﬂﬁf ZETMITAFE
N EMERE - SR T RS
Z B BRET5ER (BEINER R
&ﬂ%ljﬁ\_ﬂlgﬁ/\> {DE}—LIZAA /}IL@JQ%H
2 o T XEDIRE % T A 2 BR
ZIN/N TEEEEEE&W%KE%i?H

VA (R N B A8 U BRERE B 15 7

% 3 B
REB XS T 2EERES M X &IMNE
PE R 2 R (R TX) °

(i) FIFEEE

AEB ARG EZ BIRTTHEE (FF
ERME16) RZFERITEE (5F
%EJM\T‘EE\EZZ) BREZRERENE
°© Z,K%.ZIE%;/ILE%‘JTEL
MER%$ﬂﬁﬁ &R =R B
$%IM%ﬁHEZ%E%F
EZBEBRITAERBIKE - K
SRR NBFEERIRIHFE
FHE o NEE BB AR R K
FRATSE BER 2 A F R EE
FFEAZBEZE  LNEBREF
Rk - BEEESEHETE KF
@ﬂfﬂﬁﬁgzﬁm I FE R
ZEEEERAESHEN -

b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31B I EE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. &R T H (&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXEKBREEEERBE (£)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued) e E bR (E)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FEEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DN

The sensitivity analyses below have been AT 8 R E 5 1T T 4R 15 7 [ 3 B
determined based on the exposure to interest RZANERBRET - 2o
rates at the end of the reporting period. The TR S ERBLE R REE
analysis is prepared assuming the financial ZeMIARBEFE —EHF
instruments outstanding at the end of the REBERE - RARNTFTEEEA
reporting period were outstanding for the whole B [ WA = @ e R F BaR1T 48
year. A 100 basis point (2017: Nil) increase ERER FA 100 B (20174 - &) 7+
or decrease in variable-rate bank balances FE gt )2 BRITEE KA 100E S
and a 100 basis point (2017: Nil) increase or (20175 - |) AR BEM - IR
decrease in variable-rate bank borrowings are MEBEUMNESBEEBELTEY 2
used when reporting interest rate risk internally - EHREERETZERITE
to key management personnel and represents BIIEA ZHE S RE M XE BRI
management’'s assessment of the reasonably NREZE WA BmASRITEBRAA
possible change in interest rates. Bank BURE DA ©

balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis

as the Directors consider that the exposure of

cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-

rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points 1r‘]7f|$tﬂ/TB§1OO§¥E(2017
(2017: Nil) higher/lower and all other variables Fo\) MAABEEMAEREZE
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit HRAE - BIAREEE E201845F
for the year ended 31 December 2018 would 12318 1L F 8 2 Br 18 i M
decrease/increase by HK$9,657,000 (2017: SEL A 1 HN9,657,0007% 7t (2017
Nil). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s F:E)  WIHFEFERNAEH
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate H¥¥RBRMITEEZ A ER R -

bank borrowings.

(ii) Foreign currency risk

(i) ShEm B

The Group undertakes certain sales and AKEBUBRMAT -Fx AR
purchases transactions denominated in MOP, . ﬁjjui)ng&%;}(ﬁ <& (B
USD, Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore Dollars SEBEERINESE I E
(“SGD”) and Malaysian Ringgit (*“MYR”) which s ﬁnnﬁﬁﬁg:F s =S o i
are the currencies other than the functional A T i SR P E &
currencies of respective group entities. As F/\\’EERT EJTEZE* HAL T
the forei : BULEETHN EFERR K
gn exchange rate of HK$ is closed @5 M > ONE AL
to MOP and HK$ is pegged with USD, the =~z [ [E: BB
Directors consider the Group’s exposure to - A5B T ERR 5}(5/%
foreign currency risk of these currencies is  RON: e TNt 3 /BZ
minimal. The Group is mainly exposed to B DEREBERER 26
foreign currency fluctuation of HK$, RMB B ABARE - Ex- %ﬂJDiEZTE
and HKS$, as these group entities, whose KEXRASGSE  MxEEERT
functional currencies are RMB, HK$, SGD and Jggﬁﬁ%:’:ﬁgju,%* AR
MYR hold certain bank balances and inter- RATHETRITAES R EBR
group balances denominated in HK$, RMB \tﬁﬁo$g.ﬁﬂgbgﬁﬂg|\%
and HK$ respectively. The Group manages its éﬁ[ﬁ;@bi’iﬁﬁﬂ\ﬁgﬂ cE=
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the /EHHEEWEI\EJ:L ﬁKHT
movemen f the foreign rrency rates. The
ovements of the foreign currency %E%TFPEK@I\EH

Directors conduct periodical review of foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should
the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _g&

B B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ2018F12A31HLLFE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. &R TR (%)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. MBEAMEREERRE(£)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued) SRR ()
(ii) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SME R B ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign AEBERSERHHUIINEEE
currency denominated monetary assets and 2 EHER N B E LA N A NS 4
liabilities and the foreign currency denominated EEEBEKERELN T

inter-group balances at the respective reporting
dates are as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHT
Assets BE
Third parties E=F
HK$ BT 1,108 1,909
MOP BPITT 38,452 33,613
uSsD ETT 2,085 1,213
RMB AR 69 4
MYR HRAEGSH 192 -
Inter-group balances FE e
SGD AN T 101,114 160,780
MYR BRATLH 9,923 -
Liabilities afE
Third parties E=F
MOP RFITT 11,739 4,252
usD E 23,428 6,988
Inter-group balances EF A2
HK$ BT 858,395 858,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B o O B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31B I EE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. &R T H (&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXEKBREEEERBE (£)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued) s E ()
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) )& JE B (4B)
Sensitivity analysis BRE D

The sensitivity analysis below details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 6% (2017: 6%) increase
in the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, HK$ and RMB, relative to respective
foreign currencies, HK$, MOP, RMB, SGD and
MYR. The sensitivity analysis of the Group also
includes foreign currency exposure on inter-
group balances. 6% (2017: 6%) is the sensitivity
rate used in the management’'s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only foreign currencies denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 6% (2017:
6%) change in the foreign currency rates.
If the functional currencies of the relevant

THBURE D AT sl AN 52 B 6 4R
EB AR ZEEEETREA
R 5&8 2 BIET-
BT AR - FTMETRS
<) F{EE% (20174 :
) ZHRE - REEZHRE
TINBIEEERAEGRITRIEY
‘ﬁ%ﬂ BURE L R6% (2017
6%))3%5%%%%&%@2%5{
Huéﬁﬂjiﬁzﬂibﬁﬁf/ﬁﬂjz)ﬂ
5o URE D ATIE B HE LA INEE 44
HrE®IEE - R ERERE
6%(2017¢ : 6%)9I\I@$Eﬂu*‘@}
FEBKE -WEHEBEE AR 2
MEEB R Sa 2 INERE/ T
BE6% :

J

o

&ﬁﬁ&%%%

group entities strengthen/weaken 6% against
respective foreign currencies:

Translation reserve would have increased/ HREEMESR (TIAREBRH
decreased by HK$44,841,000 (2017: BARKREFEY 2EBRHEH
HK$41,857,000) as a result of change in foreign B ) ZINEETE R F) o [E 74
currency rates of inter-group balances, as the &5 180,k 144,841,000 T
inter-group balances form part of the Group’s (20174 - 41,857,000/%70 °

net investments in subsidiaries.

HRE=ZFALTZEERE B
WETEREE) - NEE ZBRBIEE
#8418 01,397,000 7T
(20175 : ZFEBRTEEE G
/1,567,000 7T) ©

Post-tax profit for the year would have
decreased/increased by HK$1,397,000 (2017:
Post-tax loss for the year would have increased/
decreased by HK$1,567,000) as a result of
change in foreign currency rates of third parties’
assets and liabilities.

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT 1= E & Bz KRB FF1E

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of R2018F12A31H ' AEB 2 H =12
the respective recognised financial assets as stated ERBRE RS BRI REI R
in the consolidated statement of financial position ZEBHEER %ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ e

best represent the Group’s maximum exposure to @ZZIK;%@?&%%U??E@E TEEME
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the i 30 B 75 & 18 o

Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by

the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has AEAREBEEERR  AKEEIR

BB EEERE %%E&ﬁf}ttﬁ °

delegated a team responsible for the determination
of credit limits and credit approvals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AR O BRI RE .

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. @Bt TR (&)

B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXEAKBREEEERBE(£)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

1= B 7 B2 K 6 18 AT 14 (48)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 8% REBAZEPEERR RAEAES
(2017: 13%) of total trade receivables due from the JEWGRTE 4258 2 8% (20174 : 13%) M

AEBEZHEAEZHEBAGR - A&
B HEXEHEFAL - KLURF
ZBERRE HEFGERI -

AEBAREERRFRHTIIER
DA

Group’s largest trade debtor. The Group’s largest
trade debtor is a department store located in the
PRC with good repayment history.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Other financial

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables assets
ABEETR B B S WA HittemERE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
1K J21 B2 default and does not have any - not credit-impaired 1218 ATEEAEEE 1B
past-due amounts FHIFEEEEEE
RE5HFH 2 EDRBRIE —EEERE
B o8 AR R FUR
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
FiE in credit risk since initial recognition - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
through information developed E2HEREEER FHIFEEE BB
internally or external resources —EEERE —EEERE
RIBEREZR 2 BRI S INBEIR -
EE R B VIR AREZE
i
Loss There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
[=gi=] the asset is credit-impaired - credit-impaired - credit-impaired
EEBETNEELBREERE THEHREEBR 2HITEAEEEE
—B2EERE —B2EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written off
Rz the debtor is in severe financial FRIE M A 85 RIBY 5T 8

difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
BRETEB ABHBRET K
PRI 2 N 7 S [ 3 S R AT U (]
#HE
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B ZE2018F12A31HLFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets which are subject to
ECL assessment:

Internal
credit rating

External
Notes credit rating
Wi SBEEFR

AEEFR

27. &M TR (&)
B. BEREEEEREEX(£Z)

1= B /B R s (8 5T 1 ()

TRALAAEESREE (AETEY
EEBEFGH MERZEERR

12-month or lifetime ECL
128 ERZHAEBEEER

Gross
carrying
amount
REAE
HK$’000
TER

Financigl assets at amortised cost
RBHERAIIRCeREE
Trade receivables 1 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 61,336
B 5 EWGR TER (FEE1) 2HRHEERE (BEER)
Credit-impaired 4519
BEEERE
Other receivables 2 N/ Low risk 12-month ECL 32,814
H it U R TER et 12EAEHEERR
Amount due from 2 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 5,034
a related company
A UNSIE TEA EEkE 12EAEHREERRE
Bank balances 3 Aorabove or N/A 12-month ECL 537,812
state owned
RITEE R AL L - Sl 12AABHEERE
BEEE
Notes: B s

1.

Trade receivables primarily consist of credit card
sales and department store sales from customers
or department store. The Directors monitor their
balances on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on trade balances individually. Trade receivables in
connection with invoices settled through credit card or
e-payment platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay are
also with high credit rating and no past due history. For
the trade receivables in connection with department
stores, the management of the Group considers these
assets are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high internal
credit-rating issuers during the year. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

1.

BORRFEFEEEREEFPHEE
REIZERFREEREERARIHEE - &
ETHERELH I AEBERE
BERBMIBHREEREFBRIEEE
BEEEER (2017F : CELBEER)
HESERERETRENRG - 258
ERAFRXKEFIZNAFE (B M
EXM BB ZEE2EH R
BHAASEEFIH LT EBHRML
o EBEARAMZE HERFTIE
M AEEBEBREZSEERS
S WEREABEEFLAES -
ERFAKHER Z Al REEMT B - £
hhE EERAEANEEZEERRE
BERD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. In determining the ECL for other receivables and
amount due from a related company, the management
of the Group has taken into account the historical
default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding other receivables and amount
due from a related company are insignificant. The
management of the Group has assessed that other
receivables and amount due from a related company
have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no impairment has been recognised.

3. The Group measures the loss allowance on liquid funds
equal to 12-month ECL. The credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because cash are placed with reputable banks
with external credit rating of at least “A” assigned by an
international credit-rating agency or state owned.

There has been no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made
throughout the year.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely
by the management of the Company. In the
management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
adequate to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest cash flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

et By

27. W T R (&)

MEEABEEERREE(E)

1= B 7 B2 K 6 18 AT 14 (48)

MiEE - (&)

2. WNEERE E At FE WK IR T FE M BEIE A AR
BZABEEBRIE AREEEE
ERIBEIEE E BB 3 R L5 AR
HER  URBAEEZ REEEME
WRBE R EREERRRERNT ZEE
RAEER AEEEEECHE
H Al FE R 0E K B B A R RUR 2 {5
E R B VIR HER AR AR E L N
B REBASEEN - Bt A\
HERRE -

3. AKHEFHERDESZBEREEBERASE
RI2EARBAEEEE - RBERZE
ERBRAR  2HRNEEDERRARE
BENEEFREED AL (B
BREEFABBERET) 2RITHEAR
TR -

ARG &I R R R s E B R

X °

FBELAR
AEEZADESRRA ARG
EEEOER  ATERDE AR
BAREEERARRHNESR
BeSEYAT  LAEHAEE LR
RAERS RERDTE -

TRFJIASESRABEREZTE
R ZRBANFR - TRIDRER
SHAKRERERcZFARRRS
MABZAUBRBASRERE - TK
EHANEEASHERE - BLFH
MERZHAEREARME » KRR FER
KANERPAR 2 MR o
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e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P B B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31BILEE
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. &R T H (&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. BEREEEEREEX(£Z)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) mEBELEE (&F

Carrying

amount

Weighted More than  More than at the
average 1yearbut 2 years but Total  end of the
effective Within ~ lessthan less than Over undiscounted  reporting

interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows period
nE¥H 1E0E 2FHL AERRE  RERER
BRIz 18h 52  EHRSE #BsE  REAE  <KRAEE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn Tin TéEn Tén TiEn TiEn

At 31 December 2018 #2018 12 A31 A

Payables B - 240,725 - - - 240,725 240,725
Amounts due torelated  ENBEATERE

companies - 4,072 - - - 4,072 4,072
Bank borrowings BEE 2.88 583,310 140,680 138,136 414491 1,276,617 1,156,495

828,107 140,680 138,136 414491 1521,414 1,401,292

Carrying

amount

Weighted More than ~ More than at the
average Lyearbut 2 years but Total ~ end of the
effective Within less than less than Over undiscounted ~ reporting

interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows period
nE¥s 1EUE 2N AEERE  NESHR
ERAZ 19 BORF  BORSE  EBsk  RBEE  REE

% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS'000

TR TEL ThL TET TET TET

At 31 December 2017 #2017 £12 A31 B

Payables e - 189,285 - - - 189,285 189,285
Amounts due torelated  EREBNEFE
companies - 4,146 - - - 4,146 4,146
193,431 - - - 193,431 193,431
C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL C. tREERBBZAAEBETE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts BEERAE  REBERARGZEATBER
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded Rz e mEERSRAEBEZE
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial HELAKSE A AAEEMBE -

statements approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ke

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12A31BLFE

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for the future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises which fall due as follows:

F A 5 R B

28. R L ZHE
RERIAR  REBIRETTREEEHE
£ EERERAYESIN 2 ARZERE
HHEEBEMT

2017
HK$’000
FiERT

2018
HK$°000

FERT

Within one year —FR 313,252 375,615
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFRF (BEEREMFE) 245,645 473,085
558,897 848,700

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for its offices and shops. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one month to five
years (2017: one month to four years) with fixed monthly
rentals and certain operating leases are subject to
contingent rents based on a fixed percentage of the
monthly gross turnover in excess of the monthly minimum
lease payments.

Included in the above is future lease payments with
related companies of approximately HK$212,829,000
(2017: HK$475,347,000) which fall due as follows:

KERNNRERAEBRER LA EREHE
Eﬁzmﬁom%ﬁZW%mﬁ%u¥—
BAZRSF (2017F : —{AZEWFE) -
HEE - ﬁ%$méﬂ%;xﬁiﬂL%
ﬁﬁﬁtﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁ Ko =R BT R
D EZSRARA SRR

%+ X #4212,829,000; 20174 :

Fiti sk Ea%fﬁ%ﬁ%@?Z%%ﬁ
JC
BT AR

475,347,000/ 7T)

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 126,091 178,926
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFLFT (BREEMTE) 86,738 296,421
212,829 475,347

The related companies are companies controlled by the
AY Trust of which STC International is the trustee.

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENT & 7 ik &

Capital expenditure in respect of

Fﬂ@ A R]FEBEAY Trust (STC International
BESTA)EZEHZA

2017
HK$'000
TERT

HK$°000

FRET

BEBEDTOBEARRN

acquisition of property, plant and %?\é\ﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁ’*ﬁz
equipment contracted for but not M s hREZ
provided in the consolidated financial &R

statements

4,841 4,260
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

30. i e HE it 8

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
19 June 2008 (“2008 Share Option Scheme”) had lapsed
automatically in June 2018 upon the expiry of the 10-year
period. Following the expiry of the 2008 Share Option
Scheme, no share options can be granted thereunder.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option
scheme for the Company to provide incentives or
rewards to participants (including the Directors and
eligible employees of the Group), the shareholders of the
Company passed and ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2018
to approve the adoption of a new share option scheme
of the Company (“2018 Share Option Scheme”). During
the Year, no share options were granted under the
2008 Share Option Scheme and the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

A summary of the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the
2018 Share Option Scheme (collectively “Share Option
Schemes) is set out as follows:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Schemes

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group.

2. Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether
full-time or part time, including any Executive
Director, Non-executive Director or Independent
Non-executive Director) and such other eligible
participants.

3. Total Number of Shares available for issue under the
2018 Share Option Scheme

i. No. of Shares: 687,308,812 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of issued
shares as at 23 May 2018, the date of passing
the resolution for adoption of the 2018 Share
Option Scheme.

i. Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at 19 March 2019 (the date of this
Annual Report): 10.14%.
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2. ZEER

RERSEEQRER (BRAZHEN
FREC BREMNRATES FATE
ié%ﬁ#iﬂﬁ%%) REMEERSZ

3. 2018FFBHL1ELZ)IE T A (R E 7787

BE

i, BRMER : 687,308,812/ A% -
{EA2018F5 8230 (BB :@EE 40
2018 F B AERTE| 2 B HER)
BEITRMAEZ210% °
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BZ2018F12A31HLLFE
30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. i et & ()
4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant 4. BEEERDHEIERER LR

2008 Share Option Scheme 20084F AR AT &

i. in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the Shares in i H?Eﬁéﬂxﬁﬁt/& A A 12
issue in any 12-month period unless approved BARNBEHTSHADZETRNG
by the Shareholders; and Z1% + &

ii. options granted to substantial shareholders or i R EA121E A HFEEJ A R KR
Independent Non-executive Directors or their KB IFRTERERNFEER B
respective associates in any 12-month period Z 5%%%}\&525%%* BRI
exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the Shares in BEETRMND201% R LERER
issue and with an aggregate value in excess 5,000,000 7T All B &L AR R BLE ©
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
Shareholders.

2018 Share Option Scheme 2018F FE AR =T &

i. in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the Shares in i Bféli?iﬂx%?tt . ‘JET?:TT12
issue in any 12-month period unless approved &l B 48 erTf HiEBEETRG
by the Shareholders; and Z1% :

ii. options granted to eligible participant in excess i. G ERKSE %Tﬁ 2 B AR
of the 1% limit must be approved by the ﬁ_ﬂ%% FAZEL IR B -
Shareholders.

5. Period within which the Shares must be taken up b, ITIERERR IS LB RIERR (7.2 BIIR
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to BEERERLBHEESE %AFZEZ

such a date determined by the Board but in any ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ:ﬁﬂﬁﬁmf AR - R

event no exceeding 10 years from the date of grant. W] NG EEE R H B AR EH 104 -

6. Minimum period for which an option must be held 6. BBIRETIERILERE . RARR
before it can been exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by B%;Fé% @ BITATE BRI ERRE

the Board. AR

7. (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the 7. () FAEEEIE AR ER PR RBN A
option: HK$1.00; KB 1.008 7T ;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must (i) NRSBGBMA R BR - &% A
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date HiREET28H A &
of grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes (i) BEENFSIBRANTAENE
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not HEARR - NIEA
applicable.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price: 8 ETFTEEZHEE

The exercise price is determined by the Board TEERESeEE (U THE) A

(subject the adjustment) and will not be less than the BRERTIERSE  (WRHREY

highest of (i) the closing price of the Share as stated HERE R RAmERMR KT

in daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on B k(RO MR EZEZL B HRI5EE

the offer date; and (ii) the average closing price of NS AREBRARZ Y

the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets WHE -

of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
9. The remaining life of the 2018 Share Option Scheme

Approximately 9 years (expiring on 22 May 2028).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no option
was granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Share Option Schemes.

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
“ORSO” Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members
of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within
the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after
1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee. The maximum
amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per each
employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee’s basic salary.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, Macau, Singapore are members of pension
schemes operated respective local governments. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage ranging from 38% to 44% of the
relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to the
pension schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary
in Macau is required to contribute MOP60 for every
employee per month while the subsidiary in Singapore
is required to contribute 16% of the employee’s monthly
gross salary. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contribution under the schemes.
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 31. BIREA EE (2)

32.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of REZERNLFEZ22,998,000% T
HK$22,998,000 (2017: HK$20,574,000) represents (20174 : 20,574,000 OB L) BAE IR R
contributions, payable to those plans by the Group at the ZHARAMBATHERERZFTEE

rate specified in the rules of the plans.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The terms and balances with related companies at the
end of the reporting periods are set out in consolidated
statements of financial position and note 20.

During the year, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties:

HEI K o

32. BTG
EAE#ﬁH}HEZﬁ FER/NEIRE S /95
LA EROR R K KHTFE20 o

BERETI

RER  NEBEBESTZZXZ0T

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(1) Sales of goods to Directors, their (1) #HEMMFESE
close family members and related 1’ F 2 M EE R R
companies (notes a and b) (Kt sFabb) 4,846 9,239
(2) Rental, electricity and air- (2) EXRENTREE
conditioning expenses paid and RAlZEE  FEEBREZTE
payable to related companies AE X H (Mikake)
(notes a and c) 176,094 157,089
(38) Service charge in respect (3) EXHRENTEER
of information system and AABEM AR RITI
administrative work paid and THEZRBE (KizTa
payable to related companies Kb)
(notes a and b) 15,981 14,951
(4) Advertising expenses paid and (4) EXIREMTFEER
payable to related companies Al BERX
(notes a and b) (Kt sFafb) 1,414 173
(5) Financial advisory fee paid and (5) EXfIRENMTF
payable to a related company NI
(notes a and b) M (Mskakb) 420 420
(6) On 12 December 2018, the Group (6) X2018F12H12H - REE LA (E1,151,472 OOO/%TEHSZ
acquired entire equity interest in BELEE 2 2R b PACES T P4
by Perfect Raise Group and the Ho BARXSFIEHNME25 -

amount due to a fellow subsidiary
of Perfect Raise at consideration of
HK$1,151,472,000. Details of the
transaction are stated in the note
25.

As at 31 December 2018, deposits paid to related
companies amounting to HK$56,590,000 (2017:
HK$66,410,000) and effective rental payables to
related parties amounting to HK$20,271,000 (2017:
HK$20,740,000) were included in renal deposits under
non-current assets and trade and other payables under
current liabilities respectively. The related companies are

R2018FE12A31A " EX N FEER
7 7 ¥ £56,590,000% £ (20174 :
66,410,000/8 7T ) K BT & HZaB’%fﬂﬁ
20,271,000 7t (20174 : 20,740,000
7‘5)E%E\JEIJ)x#b&bﬁ&Zfﬁiﬂﬁé&
REBEBEZ2ES NEMENFIE - F‘%s_
Tl AAY Trust (STC International B H

the companies controlled by the AY Trust of which STC A) S A F
International is the trustee.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

33.

(a)

(c)

The related company/companies is/are controlled by the
Directors/their associates or the AY Trust of which a Director is
one of the eligible beneficiaries.

These transactions are connected transactions exempt from
announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’
requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

The expenses paid are in relation to the tenancy agreements
entered into with the related companies of the Company.
Some of these transactions are discloseable continuing
connected transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules) of the Company which details are
disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under “Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

The compensation to the Directors and key management
personnel of the Group are disclosed in note 9.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

A ) A A 2 B RUEIR

At 1 January 2018

32. METTR G (#)
3T -

(a)

BENGHRES HEHEALAY Trust (—
FEFEAHAERIHEN) 2H -

ZERXHRIRE ETHRAIE 14A 33 REH R
WP NE - B NIBI RIS 2 R E RS

%5 -

L 1 To B B A A B B A R T S 2 R
B ERELR S IAAR AT RESE
MRS (R LMMAIE 14AE) - HE
BREFRHRE [EFRZH - RHEREHZ
xRS EMERS] BT [BARERS )
— R -

AEBEFRETERASZHE IR
SO -

20181 A1H

Bank
borrowings
RITEE

HK$’000
FTERT

Financing cash flows: BMERSRE -
- Bank borrowings raised —BEERITEE 522,745
- Repayments of bank borrowings —BERTEE (3,256)
— Interest paid —BEFE (4,095)
Net cash used in financing cash flows BMERESREMACR S TR 515,394
Interest expenses B 4,095
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries HW BB AR mES (:E25)
(note 25) 637,006
At 31 December 2018 720185128318 1,156,495
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

A T 2 3 5 0K D0 AR

F A 5 R B

2018
HK$000

FET

2017
HK$'000
FTERT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE 1,583,094 1,583,094
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U —FE B /B A B FIE 2,808,374 2,713,137
4,391,468 4,296,231
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments e RIEFRIE 546 541
Tax recoverable CIREIE A 34 -
Amount due from a related company  JER—RIEE R 5 FIE 5,034 -
Bank balances and cash RIT4E ﬁ%&fﬁi 1,662 957
7,276 1,498
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges  EfbE = Iﬁ&ﬁkgﬁﬁ 387 300
Amount due to a subsidiary FEH—F'WNJ% 57,206 11,089
Amount due to a related company T — M RAE R RIRIR - 35
57,593 11,424
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (50,317) (9,926)
Net assets EEFE 4,341,151 4,286,305
Capital and reserves EXRREE
Share capital N 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves & 856,999 802,153
Total equity RS 4,341,151 4,286,305
The Company’s statement of financial position was RR Az B R R # &= 20193 A19R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of = $ ?tt/&&&ﬁé Tz AHTINES
Directors on 19 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf 1&%
by:
CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

AR V) Z B 5 IR 0 e A M Ak A (42)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVES

KARzREES
Retained
profits
REB =T
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2017 201741818 684,334
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMEEEBABRE
income for the year 129,519
Interim dividend paid for 2017 2017F A HARR B (11,700)
At 31 December 2017 R2017412A31H 802,153
Profit and total comprehensive FRRAEEEBALRRE
income for the year 193,360
Repurchase of ordinary shares (] 8 X 3 AR (51,194)
Final dividend paid for 2017 2017 RERIR B (39,864)
Interim dividend paid for 2018 2018 HIR B (47,456)
At 31 December 2018 #A2018%F12H31H 856,999
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

35. K E AW Z 5
R20184F K2017F12HA31H » KA A *
BB AR ZFBOT :

Name of subsidiary

WELREHE

Direct subsidiaries

EENEAF

Place of

incorporation/

registration/
operation

R/
S i 2L

Issued
ordinary
share capital/
registered
capital

E:<H
LERRA/
&R

Proportion of issued
share capital held

by the Group

ARERE

ERTRA LA

2018

2017

Principal activities

Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited (“HK") 1% REAR

REBFUE (PE) ZRERRF  BE

Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Holdings Limited RERUHE e REER

REBFRE (TH) FRERAA

Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(HK & Macau) Holdings Limited RBRTAEE E REER

REBFRE (BR) BRERAA

Emperor Watch & Jewellery HK HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Overseas Holdings Limited 6 18T REER

REBFREEIMERERAR

Indirect subsidiaries

BEHEL T

Beauty Royal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy

BRERNRA BE 28T agent services

RESEMERERSE
Charter Loyal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BLCBRAA &E 28T agent services
RESEHERERSB

Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) HK HK$100 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
Company Limited BE 1007 jewellery

REBHRE (FA) FRAA HEBHRIAE

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Malaysia MYR3,000,000 100% - Sales of jewellery
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. BRAD 3,000,000 HEKE

SRERRE

Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100%  Provision of management
Management Limited KBRS (E services

REEGFREERREERAR RUERRS

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Singapore SGD1,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. N 1,000,000 jewellery

AT HEBRIAE
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

35. EE MG F Z 7 ()

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELR A

Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
BEHELR (£)

Issued
ordinary
share capital/
registered
capital

B8
LERRA/
&R

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

Proportion of issued
share capital held
by the Group

ARERE
ERTRA LA

2018 2017

Principal activities

Esteem Step Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of group
ERAERAR R 25,0008 7T administration services
RESETHERRE
EWJ Macau Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches and
EWJRFIBERAF] B 25,0002 ¢ jewellery
HEBRRIAE
Foremost Resources Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
ERERERAR G 1% agent services
RESERERBRS
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited HK HK$10,000 100% - Property investment
SRRABRAR & 10,0007 7T MERE
Mount Win Limited HK HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
ERERAA 6 1,000,000 7T agent services
RUEBERERERYE
Phoenix Noble Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of group
BHBRATF R 25,0009 7T marketing services
REEETSHEERS
Success Wealthy Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BEERAR B BT agent services
RESEMERERE
Trillion Winner Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
FTRERAAF BA BT agent services

RESERERERS
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. FEME AR Z 5 (#)
(Continued)

Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities

| BYf
it/ EERRAE,/ REmE
WELREHE EEb sfak  BRARAZLA TTEY

2018 2017

Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
BEHELR (&)

Up Success Limited HK HK$300,000 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BHBRRA BE 300,000/ T agent services
RHEBRERERY
Vision Wing Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of group sourcing
SABRAA] R 25,0009 7T services
REEERERE
Wealthy Able Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
MABRAT BE 1% agent services
RUSERERBRE
Zeal Team Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BRBRAF BA BT agent services
RUEBRERERYE
REEGHE (tR) ARAR! PRC HK$160,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
e 160,000,0007% 7T jewellery
HEERNIIAE
REEFEHRE (RY) ARAR! PRC HK$100,500,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
e 100,500,000 7 jewellery
HEERIIAE
IREREREREFBERAR PRC HK$73,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
hE 73,000,000/ 7 jewellery
HEERIIAE
# The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises. # ZEMBARAIIEBEDE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities EFEFEBTEMBRRIBITEMNERES °
at the end of the year.
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of EERRINEEREBAENB AR ZFIEE
the particulars of all subsidiaries of the Group will be of FTEEBEEALE  WEREVHE REFRE
excessive length and therefore the list above contains BHNEEREATEZMNBRARFE -

only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally
affect the results or assets of the Group.
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e, FINANCIAL SUMMARY
w B

For the year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31BLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TAET

RESULT E5
Revenue WA 5,924,947 4,430,846 3,641,845 4,075,124 4,722,248
Profit/(loss) before BR& AR R

taxation (B8E) 168,690 (116,609) (59,843) 173,237 318,253
Taxation ] (30,548) (3,473) (4,978) (13,546) (53,969)
Profit/(loss) for ZN/NSIEZ P N

the year attributable ~ fE15F &

to owners of il D

the Company (E518) 138,142 (120,082) (64,821) 159,691 264,284

As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR

ASSETS AND EERAE

LIABILITIES

Total assets WEE 4,796,332 4,466,392 4,408,032 4,673,484 5,969,472
Total liabilities FEN=E (338,527)  (191,196)  (233,922)  (306,799) (1,504,452)
Net Assets BEFE 4,457,805 4,275,196 4,174,110 4,366,685 4,465,020
Equity attributable ARAHEBA

to owners of the EAHE L )

Company and total R

equity 4,457,805 4,275,196 4,174,110 4,366,685 4,465,020
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